

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32  
33  
34  
35  
36  
37  
38  
39  
40  
41  
42  
43  
44  
45  
46  
47  
48  
49  
50  
51  
52  
53  
54  
55  
56

**GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS, PERSONNEL, HOUSING,  
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY & DIVERSITY COMMITTEE  
OF THE  
SUFFOLK COUNTY LEGISLATURE**

A meeting of the Government Operations, Personnel, Housing, Information Technology & Diversity Committee of the Suffolk County Legislature was held in the Maxine S. Postal Legislative Auditorium of the Evan K. Griffing Building, 300 Center Drive, Riverhead, New York, on February 26, 2020, at 10:00 a.m.

**MEMBERS PRESENT:**

Legislator Samuel Gonzalez, Chairperson  
Legislator Tom Donnelly, Vice Chair  
Legislator Susan A. Berland  
Legislator Leslie Kennedy  
Legislator Kevin J. McCaffrey

**ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:**

Legislator Robert Trotta  
Sarah Simpson, Counsel/Suffolk County Legislature  
Amy Ellis, Chief Deputy Clerk/Suffolk County Legislature  
Elizabeth Stroehlein, Budget Review Office  
Lora Gellerstein, Chief of Staff/Presiding Officer's Office  
Derek Stein, Aide to Presiding Officer Gregory  
Jennifer Hann, Aide to Chairman Gonzalez  
Guy Cala, Aide to Legislator McCaffrey  
Samantha Sarube, Aide to Legislator Berland  
Ali Nazir, Aide to Legislator Kennedy  
Karen Klafter, Aide to Legislator Donnelly  
Jack Nix, County Executive's Office  
John Kennedy, Suffolk County Comptroller  
Douglas Sutherland, Suffolk County Deputy Comptroller  
Kevin Girona  
Gregory Blass  
Ewa Pienkowski  
Marie Tooker  
Christopher Loeb  
Anthony Cibelli  
Michael Herbst  
Michael Pirkle  
And all other interested parties

**TAKEN BY:**

Lucia Braaten, Court Stenographer

(*\*The meeting was called to order at 10:03 a.m.\**)

**CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

Good morning, everyone. Welcome to the Government Operations, Personnel, Information Tech & Diversity Committee meeting. If we can all please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance, begun by Legislator Donnelly.

(*\*Salutation\**)

Please remain standing for a moment of silence for all those who are abroad, giving their lives, and those who have given their lives for our freedom and our protection.

(*\*Moment of Silence\**)

Thank you. You may be seated. Good morning, everyone. Once again, thank you for attending the committee meeting here today. At this moment, we do not have any correspondence. We will start with the public portion. I believe, Ms. Clerk, that we have two cards, correct?

**MS. ELLIS:**

Yes.

**CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

Okay. All right. So, first, I have Kevin Gironda. On deck, Gregory Blass. Please, come up.

**MR. GIRONDA:**

Good morning. How are you? Pleasure to be here in front of you. Now -- hello. Okay. So I just want to make sure that -- I don't need this. I just want to make sure that some of you hear my voice.

**MS. SIMPSON:**

You need the mic.

**MR. GIRONDA:**

All right. Some of you Legislators, and I know you know me, I've spoken to and I've gotten nothing and nowhere. Now, we talk about corruption, okay? Let's talk about the Brookhaven Town cocaine ring that, again, has plagued our community. Let's talk about the pistol-whipping of Lucas Vicuna, okay? Let's put that on our minds. There was a pistol whipping that was covered up. Let's get to that.

We went after Tom Spota and Christopher McPartland. Do we really think they did that all by themselves in the District Attorney's Office? Jimmy Burke had 12 people helping him. Where are all the people that helped out Tom Spota? Let's talk about that.

Let's talk about the corruption that's still going on. It takes you a child to be killed by his father? If that's what happened, that's what it takes you? My child was abandoned by a police officer. Half hour later, that cop comes back to my house to check

1 on the child. It's a day late and a dollar short. My in-laws had  
2 already safeguarded that child. I called CPS, they refused to take  
3 a report on that, they refused. Where are the checks and balances?  
4

5 I've spoken to you, Mr. Trotta, Mrs. Kennedy, and many others.  
6 You're just the two that are here today, okay? Still waiting for a  
7 phone call back. It's all right, I get it. It should not take the  
8 death of a child for you to do your job. Where is the  
9 accountability? We give people the power when they become a police  
10 officer. We give people certain powers when they become a District  
11 Attorney. And I have videos on Tim Sini. He's got my message and  
12 he did nothing with it. That's what we call a puppet. Do we  
13 understand? Have a great day. I want you to think about what I  
14 said.  
15

16 You know what -- ah, I got nothing else to say, seriously. I  
17 expect a phone call, I expect something at one point in my life.  
18 There's corruption? You know it. There's accountability? Not  
19 really, right? There are people out there protected on their jobs.  
20 That's a disgrace. We are supposed to teach our children to say  
21 that it's okay to go to a police officer? Seriously? Seriously,  
22 is that what we're going to do? We're supposed to say the District  
23 Attorney is supposed to represent us and protect us? Lucas Vicuna,  
24 check out that pistol-whipping and the connection to the Brookhaven  
25 Town cocaine ring.  
26

27 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
28 Thank you very much, Kev --  
29

30 **MR. GIRONDA:**  
31 Thank you.  
32

33 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
34 -- for speaking.  
35

36 **MR. GIRONDA:**  
37 Thank you.  
38

39 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
40 Up next, Gregory Blass.  
41

42 **MR. BLASS:**  
43 Thank you, Members of the Committee, and good morning. Thank you  
44 for giving me the chance to talk a bit about the resolution that  
45 calls for a Charter amendment to create an Office of Inspector  
46 General for Suffolk County. I'm going to talk about -- a little bit  
47 about bureaucracies, about how the County bureaucracies have grown,  
48 about the wisdom of annual reports, which an I.G. would do under  
49 this bill, and I want to talk, finally, about how well it works for  
50 others.  
51

52 I have some experience with bureaucracies on the Village level, on  
53 the Federal level, on the State level, and on, of course, the  
54 County level. And I note that every bureaucracy I've ever been  
55 connected with and ever had to deal with had an inherent capacity  
56 to grow. Look at what has happened in Suffolk County's

1 bureaucracies, they have grown by leaps and bounds. You have  
2 commissions, and agencies, and boards, and bureaus, as well as the  
3 departments, and they have an unwitting and sometimes deliberate  
4 ability to protect themselves, and they all become insular. They  
5 all become, without sometimes realizing it, an agency that protects  
6 itself. What I think is wise about setting up an Office of  
7 Inspector General for Suffolk County is that you have a separate  
8 set of eyes. You have a separate operation that is able to assure  
9 integrity, that is able to ensure efficiency.

10:09AM 10

11 And it's interesting that the bill is called the Thomas Valva Bill,  
12 named after the tragic loss of this child, from which the County is  
13 still reeling. And I was Commissioner of DSS up until 2013, and I  
14 saw very often that we had no choice but to investigate ourselves  
15 and rely upon the State bureaucracy to investigate itself whenever  
16 mishaps would occur.

17

18 An Office of Inspector General, however, will have some unique  
19 abilities under this bill to act on complaints against the County,  
20 to act on allegations of wrongdoing. The I.G. will have subpoena  
21 power, it will have the ability to protect whistle-blowers. Take  
22 the situation that was just discussed with the Police Chief that is  
23 now a scandal in this County, and the D.A. and his Chief Assistant.  
24 How could those organizations do anything but investigate  
25 themselves, because there was no capacity outside, unless there was  
26 a Federal Grand Jury empanelled to investigate it? I think that  
27 this kind of separate set of eyes would be an insurance policy. It  
28 has worked well in Nassau County, which adopted it in 2017. The  
29 City of Yonkers has one for not only the City Government, but for  
30 its school districts. Imagine an I.G. for all the school boards in  
31 Suffolk County. We could possibly have that happen today if we  
32 take this step, this first step. That would be such a remarkable  
33 measure of progress in Suffolk County.

10:10AM 20

10:11AM 30

34  
35 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

36 Thank you, Mr. Blass. Thank you very much. Legislator Trotta.

37  
38 **LEG. TROTТА:**

39 Yeah. You mentioned protecting themselves, which I find quite  
40 interesting. You were the Presiding Officer of the Legislature.  
41 You were, I think, a Family Court Judge?

10:11AM 40

42  
43 **MR. BLASS:**

44 Yes.

45  
46 **LEG. TROTТА:**

47 And you were the Head of DSS for six years?

48  
49 **MR. BLASS:**

50 Yes.

10:11AM 50

51  
52 **LEG. TROTТА:**

53 Can I ask you a question? This is a picture of our Chief of Police  
54 back in 2013, where he was first investigated by the FBI. Is this  
55 Inspector General something that could have been used to prevent  
56 the FBI and the Federal Government to come in?

1  
2 **MR. BLASS:**

3 Yes, I think very much so, because you have -- what leads to that  
4 kind of behavior, and what led to the behavior that this individual  
5 built upon, was a culture that really had no outlets where someone  
6 could go and say I feel confident that I could go to someone who  
7 would be a separate, independent assurer -- insurer of integrity  
8 and let this be known.  
9

10:12AM

10 I think that the culture in the Police Department at the time, at  
11 the top at least, led to such things as -- we read about them,  
12 about demotion parties, about attaching surveillance devices to  
13 other POLICE OFFICERS' vehicles because they were held in disfavor.  
14 Where could a police officer, the vast majority of whom are  
15 honorable public servants, where could they go to talk about this?  
16 If we had had an I.G. then, we probably would have saved ourselves  
17 an awful lot of money, more than paying for the cost of the I.G.  
18 just from the lawsuit that resulted from the unfortunate episode  
19 with that defendant who was arrested for breaking into the police  
20 officer's car.  
21

10:13AM

22 **LEG. TROTТА:**

23 I mean, I was going to go through a litany of covers of Newsday  
24 where this is in June, and then, again, in October he's on the  
25 cover of Newsday for having sex with prostitutes in his police car  
26 and nothing was done. But I think you articulated very well the  
27 need for this.  
28

10:13AM

29 And I have a question just about DSS procedures. I had heard that  
30 if a complaint of child neglect or abuse was made, a copy is also  
31 sent over to the District Attorney's Office.  
32

33 **MR. BLASS:**

34 If the CPS worker, him or herself, did not do that when criminal  
35 conduct was alleged in the report to CPS, certainly, the  
36 Commissioner would be in the position, and did, and I did and my  
37 predecessors did, and I'm sure my successors did, would bring that  
38 to the District Attorney's Office. But, again, the District  
39 Attorney has, as an elected official, the discretion to ignore  
40 something, and an Inspector General has also the power to follow up  
41 on that.  
42

10:14AM

43 And let me talk just one point about the annual reports that an  
44 Inspector General does. These are a marvelous device, because they  
45 not only are a report card on what the County has done with the  
46 Inspector General's recommendations, they are also a follow-up  
47 report, because each annual report makes reference to the past  
48 recommendations and what has been done about them, and it's all out  
49 in the open, it's made available to the Legislature.  
50

10:14AM

51 And I urge the Legislature to do what Nassau did. You need a  
52 two-thirds majority to adopt this Charter amendment?  
53

54 **LEG. TROTТА:**

55 No, actually we don't. No, we don't.  
56

1 **MR. BLASS:**  
2 You need a simple majority.

3  
4 **LEG. TROTТА:**  
5 Simple majority.

6  
7 **MS. SIMPSON:**  
8 (Nodded yes)

9  
10:15AM 10 **MR. BLASS:**  
11 Well, it is my earnest hope that Suffolk does what Nassau did and  
12 adopt it unanimously.

13  
14 **LEG. TROTТА:**  
15 And one last question. Do you think if this was in place, or if  
16 this is in place, in the future every department, any -- every  
17 County department will be a little more vigilant in their duties in  
18 making sure that things are done correctly because there is that  
19 extra set of eyes?

10:15AM 20  
21 **MR. BLASS:**  
22 In terms of efficiency, in terms of integrity, in terms of  
23 protecting people who speak up about wrongdoing, absolutely, yes,  
24 it's like an insurance policy.

25  
26 **LEG. TROTТА:**  
27 Thank you very much.

28  
29 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
10:15AM 30 Thank you, Legislator. Legislator McCaffrey.

31  
32 **LEG. MC CAFFREY:**  
33 Thank you. Hi, Mr. Blass. Nice to see you again.

34  
35 **MR. BLASS:**  
36 Nice to see you.

37  
38 **LEG. MC CAFFREY:**  
10:15AM 39 Good. So, going back to your experience as DSS Commissioner, and  
40 also relying on your experience as a Family Court Judge, how would  
41 this Inspector General interact with DSS specifically, and how  
42 would it have done something to possibly prevent what happened with  
43 Thomas Valva?

44  
45 **MR. BLASS:**  
46 Well, that depends in great measure upon what guilt CPS may have  
47 had in that tragic outcome. But an Inspector General's Office  
48 would be able to do, if nothing else, preventive things like  
49 ascertaining with audits, in cooperation with the Comptroller. I  
10:16AM 50 would point out, even the New York State Comptroller's Office has  
51 an Inspector General. And they would be able to determine that the  
52 budget is insufficient for caseworkers, the caseloads are  
53 insufficient. They would be able to break that relationship that  
54 develops between the departments and the Executive when it comes to  
55 the budget to making their cases for what budgetary support they  
56 need, but then supporting what the Executive finally puts out.

1  
2 An Inspector General can point out that this caseload for these  
3 caseworkers is improper, and that, I would suspect, has had a lot  
4 to do with why certain cases like that of Thomas Valva falls  
5 through the cracks, because even caseload numbers aren't the whole  
6 story. Some cases, investigatory cases and supervisory cases in  
7 CPS take a lot more work than others. And you also have an  
8 Inspector General who could find out with subpoena power from  
9 people who won't want to speak to law enforcement, or to an I.G.,  
10 or to an investigator unless they were subpoenaed. That type of  
11 subpoena power would allow an Inspector General to do much more  
12 than an internal departmental investigation could do.

13  
14 **LEG. MC CAFFREY:**

15 Very good. Thank you. Nice to see you again.

16  
17 **MR. BLASS:**

18 Same here.

19  
20 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

21 Legislator Kennedy, questions for Counsel?  
22

23 **LEG. KENNEDY:**

24 I'm going to wait until we discuss the bill, as opposed to the  
25 public portion, to ask my questions. But thank you for coming out,  
26 and thank you for speaking on the bill.  
27

28 **MR. BLASS:**

29 My pleasure. Thank you.

30  
31 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

32 Thank you, Legislator. Legislator Donnelly.  
33

34 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

35 Hi. Good morning, Mr. Blass. How are you? We haven't had the  
36 pleasure of meeting. And, certainly, you've had a long career here  
37 in Suffolk County, and I respect that. I, too, have had a very,  
38 very long career in public safety.  
39

40 **MR. BLASS:**

41 Thank you.  
42

43 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

44 So the tragedy that occurred in this County is beyond words and  
45 it's horrific. And I, too, have seen a lot of tragedy in my  
46 professional career, and usually it's a set of circumstances, not  
47 necessarily one particular circumstance, that leads to a tragedy.  
48 And in this case, you know, it's clear that both from the Nassau  
49 side and the Suffolk side and the New York State side, that there  
50 was a complete system failure. So nothing that we do is going to  
51 bring this little man back. The challenge in front of us is to  
52 prevent it from happening again.  
53

54 You speak about the Office of Inspector General, which I don't  
55 particularly have an opinion on just yet, but I am interested to  
56 know your thoughts on it. You did serve as the Presiding Officer

1 of this body, did you not?  
2

3 **MR. BLASS:**

4 Yes, sir.  
5

6 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

7 Did you advocate for an Inspector General at that time?  
8

9 **MR. BLASS:**

10:19AM 10 No. I regret that I did not. The indications that suggested one  
11 was needed were not as apparent as they are now. We did not have a  
12 D.A. who was sentenced -- is about to be sentenced for Federal  
13 felonies. We didn't have a Police Chief who ended up the way we  
14 have one now. We didn't have those episodes that made these  
15 glaring points with us. But even if we are late in doing what we  
16 might have done sooner, it's best that we do it now. I think that  
17 it's an insurance policy, and I think that it has, as you said, a  
18 preventative function. It can create a deterrent factor in a lot  
19 of these departments to make sure that there is an extra set of  
10:20AM 20 eyes that has to be satisfied.  
21

22 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

23 So that being said, and, again, I was not here, you know, when all  
24 what you're discussing occurred. However, justice was done. The  
25 FBI and the Department of Justice both conducted investigations.  
26

27 So you referenced Nassau County have an office or they just stood  
28 one up. So would that preclude other agencies as such as like the  
29 New York State Inspector General, or the New York State Attorney  
10:20AM 30 General, or the Southern Bureau of the Department of Justice, that  
31 wouldn't preclude them from conducting their own investigations, as  
32 they have, would it?  
33

34 **MR. BLASS:**

35 It wouldn't preclude them. I would look at it as supplementing  
36 them. And you won't be getting annual reports from those entities  
37 about specific details of Suffolk County and how it operates.  
38 That's one of the major functions of an Inspector General for a  
39 County Legislature, as the policy-making body of County Government,  
10:21AM 40 to provide a set of recommendations with followup year to year as  
41 to how things could be better. That is not just another layer of  
42 bureaucracy, that is much more than that. That is an operation --  
43 an entity that overlooks the operations and the details of Suffolk  
44 County's operations that the State-level investigators and the  
45 Federal level of investigators really don't have the capacity or  
46 the time do. So I look at it as a supplement rather than as a  
47 replacement.  
48

49 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

10:21AM 50 Okay. It's -- you have some interesting thoughts. And, like I  
51 said, I don't particularly have an opinion on it, but -- so the  
52 County is in very difficult financial shape. I think it's, you  
53 know, a pretty fair analysis. And we work hard, this body works  
54 hard to try and prepare a responsible Capital Budget and a  
55 responsible Operating Budget. So standing up a division, we'll  
56 call it a division using my own lingo, of this size is pretty



1 significant. Like where would you suggest, then, that we get the  
2 offsets within the County Operating Budget to try and stand up, you  
3 know, what's essentially a pretty large division?  
4

5 **MR. BLASS:**

6 I don't know if you could get offsets in the same budget year that  
7 you set it up, but I'm convinced, based on performance of the I.G.  
8 for the -- for the New York State -- I'm sorry. The New York City  
9 Police Department has its own I.G., the Gaming Commission has its  
10 own I.G., and many other agencies on the State and on the --

10:22AM

11  
12 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

13 I'm not disputing its effectiveness, I'm not here to challenge  
14 that. I do believe that it's an important role, but I think  
15 there's some serious considerations in terms of --

16  
17 **MR. BLASS:**

18 The cost.

19  
20 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

21 -- you know the cost, the organizational structure of it, the  
22 overlapping investigatory responsibilities. So that's kind of what  
23 I'm trying to quiz you on here a little bit. Sorry for the -- so  
24 many questions, but --

10:22AM

25  
26 **MR. BLASS:**

27 No, they're excellent questions and I appreciate them. I think  
28 that the I.G.'s function and the culture that it will create, and  
29 the channel to which a number of employees could go to who might be  
30 very inhibited to go to now, would pay for itself in the long run.  
31 I don't think we would have a \$1.3 million payout of a lawsuit if  
32 we had had an Inspector General early on when that all unfolded.  
33 I'm convinced that an Inspector General would be a protector of  
34 whistle-blowers, and whistle-blowers would know that, and they  
35 would know that they have the chance to show where the County's  
36 inefficiencies and discrepancies and shortcomings can be corrected.  
37 That's how it will pay for itself, more than pay for itself, I  
38 believe, and that's how it unfolded in other jurisdictions.

10:23AM

39  
40 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

41 Okay, very good. Thanks for taking my couple of questions.

42  
43 **MR. BLASS:**

44 Absolutely.

45  
46 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

47 Thank you.

48  
49 **MR. BLASS:**

50 Thank you.

10:23AM

51  
52 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

53 Legislator Trotta.

54  
55 **LEG. TROTTA:**

56 Just to follow up, you did -- we were speaking earlier about back

1 when you were the Presiding Officer or Legislator, there was a car  
2 leasing scandal. And the -- correct me if I'm wrong, but the  
3 Legislature gave themselves subpoena power and they did it  
4 themselves.

5  
6 **MR. BLASS:**  
7 Right.

8  
9 **LEG. TROTТА:**

10:24AM 10 So this body has been unwilling to do this, obviously, in the past.  
11

12 **MR. BLASS:**

13 That's right, but we had to go through the expense of appointing a  
14 special prosecutor. If we had had an I.G. in office at the time,  
15 that car lease would never have gotten to first base the way it was  
16 structured.

17  
18 **LEG. TROTТА:**

19 Exactly my next question. And, you know, just as a follow-up, I  
10:24AM 20 think you would agree, you can't count on the Federal Government to  
21 be monitoring every action of the County.  
22

23 **MR. BLASS:**

24 That's right. They are so overwhelmed. I did an internship when I  
25 was in school in the Official Corruptions Bureau of the -- of the  
26 Southern District of New York and they were overwhelmed. There  
27 were so many cases piling up that they would say, "We just can't do  
28 all of these," and they involved local governments. Having an I.G.  
29 for local government and only for Suffolk County government, I  
10:25AM 30 think, especially since we are still reeling from what just  
31 happened over the past year alone, indicates that an I.G. would  
32 work very well for Suffolk County and is worth trying.  
33

34 And, again, the way the bill is structured, it's a Charter  
35 amendment that very wisely leaves it to the Legislature. True, the  
36 County Executive has to sign the legislation if it's adopted to  
37 create the Charter amendment, but, thereafter, the Legislature is  
38 the one to whom the I.G. would be answerable, and that works very  
39 well, too. It takes a lot, not all, but it takes a lot of the  
10:25AM 40 politics out of the I.G.'s budget and the I.G.'s function.  
41

42 **LEG. TROTТА:**

43 And, also, the fact that it's a five-year term, and the person  
44 basically can't be replaced unless some drastic --  
45

46 **MR. BLASS:**

47 Of course, right.  
48

49 **LEG. TROTТА:**

10:25AM 50 -- misconduct, gives the I.G. freedom, Republican, Democrat, they  
51 don't care what it is, they're going to get to the bottom of it.  
52

53 **MR. BLASS:**

54 Exactly.  
55  
56

1 **LEG. TROTТА:**

2 Thank you.

3

4 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

5 Thank you, Legislator. Any --

6

7 **MR. GIRONDA:**

8 Can we ask one question? Can I trouble you? We, the People, would  
9 like to ask questions.

10

11 **MS. SIMPSON:**

12 No, no, no.

13

14 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

15 No, I'm sorry.

16

17 **MR. GIRONDA:**

18 Well, it's actually to him.

19

20 **MS. SIMPSON:**

21 No, no.

22

23 **MS. TOOKER:**

24 Make him --

25

26 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

27 I'm sorry, you had your --

28

29 **MS. TOOKER:**

30 So we can't talk?

31

32 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

33 -- your time. I'm sorry. Thank you.

34

35 **MS. TOOKER:**

36 This is proof that --

37

38 **MR. GIRONDA:**

39 He's been here for like eight minutes already. I just want to ask  
40 one simple question.

41

42 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

43 That's because the body has been asking him in particular  
44 questions --

45

46 **MS. TOOKER:**

47 I know.

48

49 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

50 -- but no. Thank you.

51

52 **MR. GIRONDA:**

53 So you have an ability that we don't have? It's a simple question.  
54 Mr. Trotta.

55

56

1 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
2 You need to sit down, sir.

3  
4 **MR. GIRONDA:**  
5 You don't?

6  
7 **MS. TOOKER:**  
8 No.

9  
10 **MR. GIRONDA:**  
11 You won't approve me a question?

12  
13 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
14 You will be escorted, sir, please.

15  
16 **LEG. TROTТА:**  
17 There's a procedure here.

18  
19 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
20 Please.

21  
22 **MS. TOOKER:**  
23 And what procedure is that, Trotta?

24  
25 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
26 Please, please.

27  
28 **MS. TOOKER:**  
29 More corruption?

10:26AM 30  
31 **MR. GIRONDA:**  
32 No, no, that's all right. It's all right. No, no, no, no, no,  
33 it's all right.

34  
35 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
36 I will have to ask everyone that is here to please try and control  
37 yourselves. Let's try to have a little respect for the other  
38 speakers that are going to be going up and any other questions that  
39 they're going to be asked. So, please, I ask that you, you know,  
10:26AM 40 treat your fellow with respect, thank you.

41  
42 Are there any other questions from the committee? Thank you very,  
43 very much.

44  
45 **MR. BLASS:**  
46 Thank you.

47  
48 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
49 Our next speak speaker, Marie Tooker. Marie, please. And on deck,  
10:27AM 50 Ewa (phonetic) Pienkowski.

51  
52 **MS. TOOKER:**  
53 Eva.

54  
55 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
56 Eva?

1  
2 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

3 Yes, that's fine.

4  
5 **MS. TOOKER:**

6 That's okay. Good morning.

7  
8 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

9 Good morning.

10  
11 **MS. TOOKER:**

12 See how amazing this is? Just by these meetings alone is proof  
13 that you're going to cover up everything. You have one person  
14 speaking, you ask him questions, a Presiding former Officer of this  
15 body. You give him all the time in the world to hear, but you give  
16 us three minutes. You want respect, sir? Mr. Gonzalez, you want  
17 respect? I'll give you respect. You know what, you want an  
18 Inspector General, you want to be an independent body? Trotta,  
19 where are you going? What happened, Trotta, you don't want to hear  
20 this? See here? There's proof.

10:28AM

21  
22 Let's start investigating your own County Clerk. Let's start  
23 investigating Judge Hinrichs for the Hobbs Act. Judge Spinner,  
24 Judge Baisley, Judge Rebolini, Judge Cicale, Judge Mackenzie,  
25 Vincent Messina, Judge Webber, Judge David Reilly, Allan  
26 Mendelsohn, Vincent DeMarco, John Scott Prudenti, who you guys let  
27 go with the party boat. How did that work for you? Steve Bellone.  
28 Are you guys kidding me? Really, are you for real? You want  
29 respect? Go ahead, look at the time, Gonzalez. Are you paying  
30 attention to me or you care about the clock? What about all the  
31 people that have been victims of your horrific corruption?

10:28AM

32  
33 You having an Inspector General is proof that you just want to keep  
34 covering things up. Well, I will tell you this, we are going to  
35 stop you. We, the People, are not going to allow you to be in  
36 charge of the Inspector General.

37  
38 Tim Sini. Tim Sini, still covering up crimes. He never went after  
39 Judge Spinner, whose daughter was selling drugs in his house.  
40 Still covering up.

10:29AM

41  
42 DuWayne Gregory, sitting and hanging out with Judge Hinrichs, how  
43 interesting is that? And with Valerie Cartright.

44  
45 It is simple, it's really simple. You guys have been covering up  
46 for decades, and all the people in the past who have been victims,  
47 especially our children. Do you really care about our children,  
48 sir? Do you really, really care? Because the last tragic  
49 situation should have never happened if you guys did your job. We  
50 have been crying and begging to you that our children are not safe.  
51 What did you do? You took the mic from me, you called the Sheriffs  
52 on me, you made fun of me, you laughed at me, you called me crazy.  
53 What, you have nothing to say, sir?

10:30AM

54  
55 (\*Timer Sounded\*)  
56

1 David DeRosa stole over 7,000 homes. Start with investigating him.

2

3 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

4 Marie.

5

6 **MS. TOOKER:**

7 Poor Penny LaValle --

8

9 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

10:30AM 10 Marie.

11

12 **MS. TOOKER:**

13 -- who then finally --

14

15 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

16 Marie.

17

18 **MS. TOOKER:**

19 -- finally deleted forged deeds from your County records room.

10:30AM 20

21 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

22 Marie, your time is up. Thank you.

23

24 **MS. TOOKER:**

25 I know. Your time is up, Gonzalez.

26

27 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

28 Thank you.

29

30 **MS. TOOKER:**

31 Your time is up.

32

33 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

34 Thank you, Marie.

35

36 **MS. TOOKER:**

37 Poor Penny LaValle got fired. Did she get fired?

38

39 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

40 Marie.

41

42 **MS. TOOKER:**

43 Did she get fired?

44

45 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

46 Your time is up, please.

47

48 **MS. TOOKER:**

49 Answer that question. Answer the question. I want you to get the  
10:30AM 50 Sheriffs to take me out. Call them. Go ahead, spend --

51

52 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

53 He's actually coming up behind you.

54

55 **MS. TOOKER:**

56 Spend more money.

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32  
33  
34  
35  
36  
37  
38  
39  
40  
41  
42  
43  
44  
45  
46  
47  
48  
49  
50  
51  
52  
53  
54  
55  
56

10:31AM

10:32AM

**CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
Thank you, Marie.

**MS. TOOKER:**  
I'll save you have half the walk.

**CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
Ewa Pienkowski.

**MS. PIENKOWSKI:**  
Dear Committee, Legislator Members, today I would like to talk to you about a very special woman, Justyna Zubko-Valva. I met this amazing woman about 15 years ago in a math class at Queens College, where we both studied mathematics and secondary education. Over the years we became friends who have more in common than just attending college together. We are both Polish, each of us has three children, and we both believe in God.

**CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
Ewa.

**MS. PIENKOWSKI:**  
Yes.

**CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
Take a deep breath, please. Can someone get her a napkin?

**MS. PIENKOWSKI:**  
It's okay.

**CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
Guys, Dave.

**MS. TOOKER:**  
A tissue, please.

**CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
Or a tissue, please.

**MS. TOOKER:**  
Lots of them for everybody.

**MS. PIENKOWSKI:**  
Through her courageous fight with the system for the safety and wellbeing of her children, you all probably know how brave, intellectual and protective mother and woman Justyna is.

Over the 15 years I got to know Justyna, I was always inspired by her dedication to her children. She always put her boys' needs first. She has been the best advocate for her children when it came to their wellbeing and education. Anthony was able to recognize letters and numbers before he started school, because Justyna had introduced him and his brothers to books and reading as they were still in her belly. She always carried books in the diaper bag next the yummy and healthy snacks that she had prepared

1 for them at home. Having her boys only two years apart when it was  
2 not easy, and many of us know who have children how tiring and  
3 overwhelming it can be, but not to Justyna. She never complained  
4 about sleepless nights or being tired. Any time I spoke to her  
5 over the phone or in person, she was always happy, courteous, kind  
6 and humble, and spoke about her children with love and passion.

7  
8 (*\*Tissues Were Handed To Ms. Pienkowski\**)  
9

10:33AM 10 Thank you.

11  
12 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
13 Thank you.

14  
15 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

16 When disciplining her children, she would talk to them and resolve  
17 any fights with kind, loving and encouraging words. Whenever we  
18 met, her boys would always hug her, kiss her, and remind her how  
19 much they love her. It is heartwarming to watch her children give  
10:33AM 20 her so much love, and, obviously, they do that because that is what  
21 they have learned and received from her throughout the years.

22  
23 I look forward to her phone calls, because she always encourages me  
24 and gives me hope, sees good in every person in the darkest  
25 moments. I am honored to call her my friend, and I hope that all  
26 of you get to know a friend in your life as special and caring as  
27 Justyna is.

28  
29 I want you to understand how important to her and her children  
10:34AM 30 being together is. That is why I am standing in front of you today  
31 and asking you not to let her down, as over the years many did,  
32 but, rather, advocate for her children, so she can get a full  
33 custody of her children, as it is the best -- as she's the best  
34 mother, and will always protect and love her children  
35 unconditionally. Thank you.

36  
37 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

38 Ewa, hold on one second. Legislator Donnelly would like to ask you  
39 a question, please.

10:34AM 40  
41 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

42 Hi, Ewa, over here.

43  
44 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

45 Yes.

46  
47 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

48 I don't know if you remember me. We met at the Deer Park Firehouse  
49 during the services.

10:34AM 50  
51 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

52 Oh, maybe.

53  
54 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

55 So it took a lot of courage for you to come up here this morning.  
56 And I think I speak for all of us that you have our undying respect



1 and gratitude for being such a great friend, and help and comfort.  
2 And I can assure you that there's a lot of emotion, but the people  
3 around this horseshoe are people of good will, and we're going to  
4 find out what happened, and we're going to help the family, and,  
5 God willing, we're going to try and prevent this from ever  
6 happening again.

7  
8 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

9 I just hope that all of you understand what difficult time it has  
10 been, not for me, but for her and her children, and she knocked on  
11 every single door. She asked every possible person for help. So,  
12 please, please, I'm begging you, do not, do not let those children  
13 down. Do not let them go through what they've been through.  
14 Please, I am begging you.

15  
16 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

17 And your voice is -- I assure you, that your voice is being heard.  
18 And as I said earlier, an entire system let this little man down.

19  
20 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

21 Not only the little man, there were six children in that house.

22  
23 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

24 Absolutely.

25  
26 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

27 We're forgetting that there were six children in that house who  
28 suffered, who went through a horrible time that none of us should  
29 ever even think of it. This is unacceptable.

30  
31 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

32 And, once again, I commend you for having the courage to come  
33 forward. Thank you.

34  
35 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

36 Thank you, guys.

37  
38 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

39 Yes. Ewa, I also have had the opportunity of speaking with her.  
40 We spoke extensively, and we need to make sure. And like  
41 Legislator Donnelly says here, we are all deeply concerned. I have  
42 my grandchildren and my children, and we will definitely all  
43 together here in this particular committee, and all the other  
44 Legislators that I have spoken to, that we are going to do  
45 everything in our power to make sure that this does not happen  
46 again, and that those children that are -- now get protected to the  
47 fullest extent of the law, and we're going to make sure of that.

48  
49 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

50 I just hope that these are not empty words. I just hope that these  
51 are words that all of us will take it and say yes, you guys did  
52 everything you could have done to protect any other accidents and  
53 horrible things that kids are going through in our communities.

54  
55 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

56 Ewa, to think that -- just to imagine my grandson or imagine my

1 granddaughter in that situation is horrific. I think about that  
2 all the time, especially when I am able to hold them and --

3  
4 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

5 You don't even know what it means to see Anthony eating nonstop.  
6 When I saw him on Tuesday, right after she got them on Thursday, I  
7 think I saw them -- I say Anthony on Tuesday. I brought goodies  
8 with me, and books and stuff, and Anthony wouldn't stop eating.  
9 This little boy was worried that there is not enough food for him.  
10 It is heartbreaking. How can you let this happen?

10:38AM

11  
12 **MS. TOOKER:**

13 That's exactly what you did.

14  
15 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

16 How can you let this happen? And she knocked on all your doors.  
17 She knocked on everybody's door and this happened. And I know  
18 Tommy was not the only child who suffered. I know there are many  
19 kids who went through horrible things in their lives and we did  
20 nothing, nothing. Shame on all of -- all of you guys. That is so  
21 shameful. We could have prevented that tragedy, we could have.

10:38AM

22  
23 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

24 Absolutely.

25  
26 **MS. TOOKER:**

27 Thank you for admitting that.

28  
29 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

30 Absolutely.

10:39AM

31  
32 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

33 Thank you for listening, guys.

34  
35 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

36 No. Thank you for speaking, Ewa. Thank you so much for being  
37 here.

38  
39 **MS. TOOKER:**

40 God bless Ewa.

10:39AM

41  
42 **MS. PIENKOWSKI:**

43 Thank you.

44  
45 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

46 Thank you.

47  
48 **MS. TOOKER:**

49 God bless Justyna. God bless all her children.

10:39AM

50  
51 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

52 I think up next, Christopher, Christopher Loeb. Hi, Chris.

53  
54 **MR. LOEB:**

55 How are you doing? Good morning, Ladies and Gentlemen. All right.  
56 You all are voting two-thirds of the Legislature, right? Is that

1 what it is, two-thirds? Mr. Trotta, is it two-thirds?

2

3 **LEG. TROTТА:**

4 You talk, we don't talk.

5

6 **MR. LOEB:**

7 Okay, I'll talk. All right, I'll talk. How -- how can you guys  
8 hire a Inspector General to investigate yourself when you guys  
9 yourself are corrupt?

10:39AM 10

11 Mr. Trotta, at Tom Spota's trial, when Lieutenant Hickey was  
12 talking about beating the shit out of me -- excuse my language --  
13 bashing my head -- I was just quoting him -- bashing my head  
14 against a desk, you were laughing hysterically with Vincent  
15 DeMarco. You didn't do that? No? Okay.

16

17 **MS. TOOKER:**

18 Oh, yeah.

19

20 **MR. LOEB:**

21 All right.

22

23 **MS. TOOKER:**

24 Yep.

25

26 **MR. LOEB:**

27 When they talked about how they feared you, how Burke was afraid of  
28 you, you ran out the courtroom jumping up and own, grabbing another  
29 one, I'm not going to say his name, one of your friends, saying,  
30 "Did you hear them? They're afraid of me. They're afraid of me,"  
31 like a little child. How can we have our children run our County,  
32 and children inspect children? How is that? No? Nothing? All  
33 right.

10:40AM

34  
35 Rob Trotta, you knew about -- you knew about the corruption within  
36 the Police Department for all the years you worked there as a  
37 Detective. No one came up and said anything. It's a big Police  
38 Department, there's a lot of corruption, sex trafficking, bribery  
39 between Judges. I'm a witness of it. Bribery between Judges,  
40 extortion, stealing drugs from crime scenes, planting drugs on  
41 criminals, you knew about that. Not once did -- no one did  
42 anything, because they were scared of retribution between -- from  
43 Burke and Spota? What about me? I was scared. What about the  
44 people? They were scared. You didn't protect them. You're  
45 supposed to protect and serve. So sometimes you got to sacrifice  
46 your job for the better -- the greater good. None of you did that.  
47 And you're going to say -- stand up here and say that you're good?  
48 You're not good.

10:40AM

49

50 It's no surprise that you wrote the resolution. I know, I'm  
51 just -- this is -- absolutely not. You're taking away our  
52 First Amendment. The people can't -- have no word, they have no  
53 control over anything, no say in anything. Oh, I get three more  
54 minutes?

10:41AM

55

56

1 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

2 No.

3

4 **MS. SIMPSON:**

5 You don't.

6

7 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

8 No.

9

10 **MR. LOEB:**

11 Okay.

12

13 **MS. TOOKER:**

14 Yeah, he does. Go. Keep going, Chris.

15

16 **MR. LOEB:**

17 I got three minutes?

18

19 **MS. TOOKER:**

10:41AM 20 Keep going. Keep going.

21

22 **MR. LOEB:**

23 I got three minutes.

24

25 **MS. TOOKER:**

26 Until the bell rings.

27

28 **MS. SIMPSON:**

29 No.

30

31 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

32 No.

33

34 **AUDIENCE MEMBER:**

35 Until the bell rings.

36

37 **MR. LOEB:**

38 Until the bell rings?

39

10:41AM 40 **LEG. KENNEDY:**

41 No, it's broken.

42

43 **MR. LOEB:**

44 All right. All right. What should I talk about now? Oh, Family  
45 Court, let me talk about Family Court. The Judges and the Criminal  
46 Lawyers and the Law Guardians are not allowing parents in the  
47 courtroom. Oh, they're telling their clients that -- they're  
48 telling their clients that they're not allowed in the courtroom,  
49 lying to them, lying to these parents that are suffering, that  
10:42AM 50 their kids are being torn from them, they're being stolen from  
51 them.

52

53 This is what's going on in Family -- oh, Mr. Gonzalez, you said it  
54 perfect. It's a -- oh, no, that was Donnelly. It's a systematic  
55 problem. And what are we doing about it to fix it? Nothing.  
56 We're killing our children, we're ruining our families, we're

1 ruining lives, and we're doing nothing. How are we going to  
2 strengthen our nation if we're killing our nation? Makes no sense.  
3 We're against ourselves, we're -- well, I don't want to go --

4  
5 **MS. TOOKER:**  
6 It's okay.

7  
8 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
9 All right.

10:42AM 10  
11 **MR. LOEB:**  
12 And nothing. And, Mr. Trotta, you're on your cell phone, like  
13 you -- you think this is a joke. You think this is a fucking joke.

14  
15 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
16 Thank you, Chris.

17  
18 **MS. TOOKER:**  
19 Thank you, Christopher Loeb.

10:42AM 20  
21 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
22 Any questions?

23  
24 **MS. TOOKER:**  
25 Yep, say the truth.

26  
27 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
28 All right. Next up, Anthony Cibelli.

10:42AM 29  
30 **MR. CIBELLI:**  
31 Good morning, all.

32  
33 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
34 Good morning.

35  
36 **MR. CIBELLI:**  
37 My name is Anthony Cibelli. I'm a veteran, a combat veteran. I  
38 was in the 82nd Airborne, the Airborne Reconnaissance Unit. I had  
39 two combat deployments to Iraq, where we lost 22 guys, and 150 were  
10:43AM 40 injured on my first deployment.

41  
42 Following my time in service, I had a legal issue, because when I  
43 left the military, I made the poor decision of keeping a  
44 hand grenade and a flash-bang grenade. And down the line I was  
45 victimized after someone was trying to recruit someone, my  
46 roommate, to do a robbery. And the police came to my house, and  
47 from there, everything came through the poisonous tree. There was  
48 no actual warrant. It was a telephonic warrant, and then down the  
49 line they changed everything, an application for a warrant,  
10:43AM 50 predated it, and made up a story that I was selling machine guns  
51 and had pipe bombs. And they said that I was selling them online,  
52 possibly, and that gave this legitimacy to these -- these  
53 investigations, and which the FBI picked up, and then I was lied to  
54 by them.

55  
56 And my dad used to work with one of the FBI agents and they lied to

1 him and made him sign evidence forms of things I never even had,  
2 and everything was, of course, national security. They couldn't  
3 declassify it, because they put me in the venue of terror.

4  
5 I'm actually helping someone revise a book right now about the  
6 Metropolitan Correctional Center, you know, where Jeffrey Epstein  
7 allegedly died. And I also am a victim now of the Family Court  
8 system, but in Queens. And I've made it my duty and due diligence  
9 to take this system down, because when I studied criminal law, I  
10 understood what criminal law was, and that it actually -- you can  
11 bring up constitutional arguments.

12  
13 The venue of the Family Courts and the Supreme Courts, where  
14 they're handling matrimonial matters, there are no constitutional  
15 protections. And if you bring it up, if you're smart enough to  
16 represent yourself, so you're not considered a ward by having a Bar  
17 member represent you, who's a legal officer representing their  
18 interest, the Court's interest, what happens is, is you are  
19 fighting for your rights, you are fighting for your children. They  
20 came from you. You made a decision with someone else to have a  
21 baby, and then the CPS people, I've seen what they do. They lie  
22 about everything, they get away with it. There is zero  
23 accountability.

24  
25 The other day I passed by Melville and I saw there was an FBI  
26 Office, so I said, "Hey, let me go in there." And over the last  
27 year I've had someone leave the FBI because I kept bothering them  
28 and they believed me, and also the Department investigation in New  
29 York City, because no one looks into Family Courts and CPS, no one.  
30 This is a slush fund for New York State, and every state that -- in  
31 these Title 4 venues. It's just a way for the states to grab money  
32 from the Federal Government, while the Administration of Children  
33 and Families and Health and Human Services, ran by Alex Azar, who  
34 didn't start it, but he's continuing to fund it, wages war on our  
35 families, fulfilling Agenda 21 in 2030, what we know is the agenda  
36 here. So I'm just a small man talking.

37  
38 *(\*Time Sounded\*)*

39  
40 We served Letitia James recently on January 8th and January 21st in  
41 her office. She's failed to respond, she's chosen not to do  
42 anything, so I started doing my own independent investigation on  
43 the New York State Government Attorney General website.

44  
45 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
46 Anthony.

47  
48 **MS. TOOKER:**  
49 He's a veteran, let him have a few seconds.

50  
51 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
52 Time's up, I'm sorry.

53  
54 **MR. CIBELLI:**  
55 Okay. Well, I'll leave with this, is NXIVM Sex Cult, ran by  
56 Keith Raniere, is connected to our Attorney General, and

1 Chuck Schumer, and everybody Upstate. And just go on their website  
2 and look at the trust security certificates for the websites and  
3 see that they're being run out of all these other countries and  
4 look into that.

5  
6 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
7 Thank you.

8  
9 **MR. CIBELLI:**  
10 I let you know.

11  
12 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
13 Thanks, Anth.

14  
15 **MR. CIBELLI:**  
16 Thank you. All right. So there was another card signed by Kevin,  
17 but Kevin has already spoken, so we're going to bypass this  
18 particular card. Is there anyone else that would like to come and  
19 testify? Please come forward. Is there anyone?

20  
21 **MR. HERBST:**  
22 (Raised hand)

23  
24 **MS. SIMPSON:**  
25 He just raised his hand. You can't see him, he's behind the  
26 podium.

27  
28 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
29 Oh, I can't see you, I'm sorry.

10:47AM 30  
31 **MR. HERBST:**  
32 Right here. Really, you can't see me.

33  
34 **MS. SIMPSON:**  
35 You're behind the podium.

36  
37 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
38 You're behind the podium, I couldn't see you.

10:47AM 39  
40 **MR. HERBST:**  
41 There's a reason why, honestly.

42  
43 (*\*Laughter\**)

44  
45 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
46 Hi. How are you?

47  
48 **MR. HERBST:**  
49 Long time no see. By the way, I have nothing to do with what just  
10:47AM 50 happened.

51  
52 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
53 Please state -- make sure you fill out a card when you're done.

54  
55 **MR. HERBST:**  
56 With my handwriting?

1  
2 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

3 State your name.

4  
5 **MR. HERBST:**

6 My name is Michael Herbst.

7  
8 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

9 Okay, Mike.

10  
11 **MR. HERBST:**

12 And just for the record, I had nothing to do with that.

13  
14 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

15 Okay.

16  
17 **MR. HERBST:**

18 No, because me and Rob had some talk, had some -- there was some  
19 talk before about, you know, me being negative about the whole  
20 bill. It's a step. As much as I support it, and I openly said  
21 that I support it, and I'll be here Tuesday to back it up, it  
22 doesn't do enough. You know, CPS, DSS, the County, I'm not even  
23 going to get into the corruption bit, because I got my own fight  
24 with Brookhaven on that one. They call it "Crookhaven" for a  
25 reason. Hey, Les.

26  
27 But the thing is, where are you going to find the offset, Tom? I  
28 think that's what you said, where are you going to find the offset,  
29 Tom? I think that's what you said, where are you going to find the  
30 offset? Why don't you -- why don't you guys actually modernize and  
31 revolutionize the actual way the system works? This is not 1956,  
32 where everybody's farming the fields, it's 20 -- it's almost --  
33 it's 2020. You know, when you got bloated contracts -- where the  
34 hell is -- where did John go, by the way, because he would love to  
35 hear this one. You got bloated contracts with private entities,  
36 you got people that don't know what the hell they're doing,  
37 especially CHI, you got a -- you got a -- you got a DSS office  
38 that's got money on New Years Day, but bankrupt on the 3rd of  
39 January. I've got the records to prove it. It's an outdated,  
40 antiquated, draconic system, that, honestly, it took the innocent  
41 life of an eight-year-old for you guys, "Wait, you know what, wait  
42 a minute, we might as well do something about this," because you  
43 know what, I've only been saying this for the last 30 freakin'  
44 years. My mom owes DSS \$32,000. Rob knows about it, not you, Rob  
45 Calarco. And the fact of the matter is that there's been nothing  
46 done.

47  
48 I'm a CPS case myself. I have a CPS case on me for nonsensical  
49 reasons. I could walk into C.I. Court and basically tell any Judge  
50 off and get away with it, because, you know, my background.  
51 Actually, I've done that a few times, especially with Simeone. The  
52 thing is what needs to happen, and, Rob, I know me and you disagree  
53 on this, it's a far cry from what the bill actually says. And I've  
54 only gotten a rough draft, I haven't gotten the actual copy of it,  
55 it hasn't been released to me, but the action of it -- and you want  
56 to talk about offset? I'll take the job for free, because I've got



1 20 years in this -- in this fight, I've got 36 years on this  
2 Island, and I've seen both sides of the spectrum.

3  
4 And I'm not going to need the last 30 seconds. I'm just going to  
5 say it like this: It's a step in the right direction, but it's a  
6 thimble in an ocean. It's a stigmatic, endicratic (phonetic),  
7 nepotistic bull crap that needs to change. Cut it.

8  
9 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

10 Thank you. Any questions?

11  
12 **MS. TOOKER:**

13 For the record, it was in over a year ago and it was tabled.

14  
15 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

16 All right. Anyone else in the public that would like to testify?  
17 Hold on, hold on.

18  
19 **MR. HERBST:**

20 What happened?

21  
22 **MS. SIMPSON:**

23 There's somebody else.

24  
25 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

26 Please come forward.

27  
28 **MR. PIRKLE:**

29 Good afternoon, everybody.

30  
31 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

32 Good afternoon.

33  
34 **MR. PIRKLE:**

35 How are you all doing? My name is Michael Pirkle, and I don't have  
36 anything prepared. I wasn't even planning to come here or, you  
37 know, know the whole, you know, situation. But I just want to talk  
38 quickly about my situation in Suffolk County.

39  
40 I moved to Suffolk County in 2008. I was born and raised in Nassau  
41 and lived in Queens most of my life. 2013 I got clean and sober in  
42 August. Right after that, I asked to divorce from my wife. Six  
43 months later, she finally gave it to me. I was then arrested by  
44 the Federal Government on marijuana charge. Once again, this was  
45 my second Fed bid, both drugs, both with no drugs, no sales, no  
46 possession, conspiracy. We all know conspiracy proves that there's  
47 no First Amendment, you know.

48  
49 I got time served, 16 months. The Judge and everybody knew it was  
50 just because an FBI agent was upset at me. They charged me with  
51 200 kilos of marijuana. I got out in 16 months later, back to  
52 Sayville. Came home to a broken home, four broken children. My  
53 wife, you know, not a great mother. She left the second day I got  
54 out. It took three weeks for me to get the house and the children  
55 back in order. My sons wanted to live with me. When she was okay  
56 with that, when she found out that my daughter wanted to live with

1 me, she went to Waverly Precinct and made a false report that I  
2 choked her. I have a big problem with people who touch women and  
3 children. I spent a lot of time in solitary giving them street  
4 justice.

5  
6 I -- now I have the new case, 32 days out, I'm in Riverhead, I take  
7 the trial, I beat it. Okay? I still get violated for what I beat  
8 in State, and I get two years for it. And during those two years,  
9 I'm feeling some type of way with this whole system and government,  
10 everything I've been -- they refused to give me my medication at  
11 MCC. A hundred and twenty stitches later, guess what, I got my  
12 medication. And when I went back to Brooklyn, that same  
13 psychiatrist that denied it the first time and then gave it to me  
14 after I sliced my wrist denied it once again.

15  
16 So I was in solitary for those two years in three different  
17 institutions. I found out that my wife lost the house. She got a  
18 rental with her boyfriend in Stony Brook. We made a pact when we  
19 got divorced that we would never bring anyone around the children,  
20 because we were both sexually abused growing up. I wrote some not  
21 so nice letters to the boyfriend, nothing direct threats, in  
22 between the lines. Four months from the door, I get hit with  
23 threatening communications and get another 17 months.

24  
25 I get out last year. My wife just recently kidnapped my kids, my  
26 two younger ones in June and took them out of state to Florida. I  
27 did everything right, went to the Police Department, went to court.  
28 Find out, come here, that we're still married. My daughter's had  
29 58 brain surgeries. My wife's had two CPS cases on her. And I  
30 haven't seen or talked to my children since then.

31  
32 And, I mean, I could just go on, but, you know, this whole system  
33 is broken. And the thing that's sad is it's all talk. The only  
34 thing they respect is violence, because all this does nothing. And  
35 it's unfortunate to be like that, but it's a sad system and a sad  
36 world. And I thank you for your time.

37  
38 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

39 Thank you very much. Just make sure you fill out that card. Is  
40 there anyone else that would like to come and speak? Okay. Not  
41 seeing anyone, we're going to close the Public Portion and move on  
42 to the agenda.

43  
44 Yes. So, before we do this, I have some correspondence here from  
45 my fellow Legislators requesting the presence of the Director of  
46 Traffic, Parking Violations -- of Violations Agency, Mr. Paul  
47 Margiotta. I just want to make sure we put this on the record, so  
48 that he can come forward and appear before this committee to answer  
49 pretty much on the vehicles' boot and tow that is happening. So I  
50 have spoken with the -- with Paul. Unfortunately, the only thing  
51 that I come across with this is that there is definitely some  
52 scheduling problems. He's got a personal issue, and also vacation  
53 happening during this year. So he did tell me that he will be here  
54 at the next cycle to take on --

1 **MS. SIMPSON:**

2 In April.

3

4 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

5 In April, that's correct, the next cycle on that is April.

6

7 **MS. SIMPSON:**

8 No.

9

10 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

11 So that he would be here, present.

12

13 **MS. SIMPSON:**

14 Our next cycle is two weeks from now.

15

16 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

17 Oh, okay. So it's after the --

18

19 **MS. SIMPSON:**

20 After.

21

22 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

23 After the cycle, in April, yes. Okay. So, like I said, if anybody  
24 would like to speak with me on this on what our conversation was,  
25 please, don't hesitate, give me a holler. But he definitely said  
26 he will be here, as soon as he comes back from vacation in April.  
27 Any questions, guys? Okay, so moving on.

28

29

**TABLED RESOLUTIONS**

10:55AM

30

31 Moving on to Tabled Resolutions. *I.R. 1016 - Adopting a Local Law*  
32 *to expand language access laws in Suffolk County. (Gonzalez)* This  
33 bill is to be tabled for a public hearing. Can I get a motion?

34

35 **LEG. DONNELLY:**

36 (Raised hand)

37

38 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

39 Motion by Legislator Donnelly. Second?

10:56AM

40

41 **LEG. BERLAND:**

42 For public hearing, yes.

43

44 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

45 Second by Legislator Berland. All those in favor? Opposed?  
46 Abstentions? Okay. This bill is tabled for a public hearing.  
47 (Vote: Tabled for Public Hearing 5-0-0-0).

48

10:56AM

49

50 *I.R. 1019 is also adopting a Local Law to amend Chapter 528 of the*  
51 *Suffolk County Code to ensure Fair Employment Screening in Suffolk*  
52 *County. (Berland)* Motion to table for a public hearing.

52

53 **LEG. BERLAND:**

54 (Raised hand)

55

56

1 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
2 Legislator Berland. Second?

3  
4 **LEG. MC CAFFREY:**  
5 Second.

6  
7 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
8 Okay. McCaffrey, Legislator McCaffrey seconds it. All in favor?  
9 Opposed? Abstentions? All right. So this law is also tabled for  
10 a public hearing. *(Vote: Tabled for Public Hearing 5-0-0-0).*

11  
12 **INTRODUCTORY RESOLUTIONS**

13  
14 We also now have -- moving on to Introductory Resolutions.

15  
16 ***I.R. 1099 - Adopting a Charter Law to establish an Independent***  
17 ***Office of Inspector General for Suffolk County. (Trotta)*** This also  
18 needs to be tabled for a public hearing. Can I get a motion by --

19  
20 **LEG. KENNEDY:**  
21 (Raised hand)

22  
23 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
24 Motion by Legislator Kennedy. Second?

25  
26 **LEG. MC CAFFREY:**  
27 Second.

28  
29 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
30 Legislator McCaffrey. All those in favor? Opposed? Abstention?  
31 Okay. So this is also tabled for a public hearing. *(Vote: Tabled*  
32 *for Public Hearing 5-0-0-0).*

33  
34 ***I.R. 1181 - This is Establishing an application fee waiver policy***  
35 ***for civil service examinations. (Co. Exec.)***

36  
37 I really, at this point, would like to call up somebody from the  
38 County Executive's Office. Jack, can you come up for one second?  
39 I just have a question.

40  
41 **LEG. BERLAND:**  
42 I make a motion.

43  
44 **MS. SIMPSON:**  
45 Legislator Berland makes a motion.

46  
47 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
48 Legislator Berland makes a motion.

49  
50 **MR. NIX:**  
51 Hi. Since this is a Sheriff resolution, I have Chief Sharkey here  
52 to talk about this.

53  
54 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
55 Okay.

1 **CHIEF SHARKEY:**

2 Good morning.

3

4 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

5 Thanks. Hi, good morning. My only question is that this is -- I'm  
6 just concerned. Are there other entities or organizations like the  
7 Explorers in any of the other departments?

8

9 **CHIEF SHARKEY:**

10:58AM 10 This --

11

12 **LEG. BERLAND:**

13 I did that work.

14

15 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

16 Oh, yeah?

17

18 **CHIEF SHARKEY:**

10:58AM 19 Yeah, this resolution actually mirrors a resolution that had  
20 previously passed by this body for the Explorers for the Suffolk  
21 County P.D.

22

23 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

24 Okay.

25

26 **MS. SIMPSON:**

27 It's extended.

28

29 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

10:58AM 30 So it's extended again?

31

32 **CHIEF SHARKEY:**

33 Yes.

34

35 **LEG. BERLAND:**

36 Yeah, if I may --

37

38 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

39 Yes, Legislator.

10:58AM 40

41 **LEG. BERLAND:**

42 -- Chairman Gonzalez. I also made -- that was the inquiry I was  
43 concerned on, and there was a resolution that the body passed to  
44 exempt -- well, to exempt the fee for the Police Department, I  
45 believe. And, also, I was looking into fire departments, but  
46 because each of the Fire Departments are really controlled locally  
47 by the municipality, we really couldn't do that countywide. So,  
48 you know, everybody else who can get this is getting it when this  
49 is -- when, hopefully, this is passed, so.

10:59AM 50

51 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**

52 Okay. Anyone else? Okay. So I'd like to make a motion to  
53 approve.

54

55 **MS. SIMPSON:**

56 Berland has the motion.

1  
2 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
3 Legislator Berland has the approval. Second, please?

4  
5 **LEG. KENNEDY:**  
6 (Raised hand)

7  
8 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
9 Legislator Kennedy. All those in favor? Opposed? Abstention?  
10 I.R. 1181 is approved. (Vote: Approved 5-0-0-0)

11  
12 We now move on to *I.R. 1191 - Authorizing the County Executive to*  
13 *execute an agreement with the Suffolk County Deputy Sheriffs Police*  
14 *Benevolent Association covering the terms and conditions of*  
15 *employment for the period of January 1, 2019 through December 31,*  
16 *2024. (Co. Exec.) I motion to table.*

17  
18 **MS. SIMPSON:**  
19 We don't have the contract.

20  
21 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
22 We don't have the contract, so I'm motioning to table.

23  
24 **LEG. MC CAFFREY:**  
25 Is there a reason --

26  
27 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
28 The contract is not completed.

29  
30 **MS. SIMPSON:**  
31 The Legislature doesn't have the contract at this point.

32  
33 **LEG. MC CAFFREY:**  
34 Oh, okay. Okay, I'll second it. Okay.

35  
36 **CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ:**  
37 Second by Legislator Donnelly. All those in favor? Approved.  
38 Opposed? Abstentions? (Vote: Tabled 5-0-0-0).

39  
40 Thank you. That is it for our agenda. Ladies and Gentlemen, we  
41 are adjourned.

42  
43 (\*The meeting was adjourned at 11:00 a.m.\*)  
44  
45  
46  
47  
48  
49  
50  
51  
52  
53  
54  
55  
56

# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<b>\$</b>	<b>7</b>	<b>agency</b> [1] - 4:5	29:53	<b>behavior</b> [2] - 5:4
<b>\$32,000</b> [1] - 24:44	<b>7,000</b> [1] - 14:1	<b>Agenda</b> [1] - 22:35	<b>approved</b> [2] - 30:10, 30:37	<b>behind</b> [4] - 14:53, 23:25, 23:35, 23:38
<b>1</b>	<b>8</b>	<b>agenda</b> [3] - 22:35, 26:42, 30:40	<b>Approved</b> [1] - 30:10	<b>bell</b> [3] - 20:26, 20:35, 20:38
<b>1</b> [1] - 30:15	<b>82nd</b> [1] - 21:38	<b>agent</b> [1] - 25:50	<b>April</b> [5] - 27:2, 27:5, 27:23, 27:26	<b>Bellone</b> [1] - 13:27
<b>1.3</b> [1] - 9:31	<b>8th</b> [1] - 22:40	<b>agents</b> [1] - 21:56	<b>arguments</b> [1] - 22:11	<b>belly</b> [1] - 15:55
<b>1016</b> [1] - 27:31	<b>A</b>	<b>ago</b> [2] - 15:14, 25:13	<b>arrested</b> [2] - 5:19, 25:43	<b>Benevolent</b> [1] - 30:14
<b>1019</b> [1] - 27:49		<b>agree</b> [1] - 10:20	<b>articulated</b> [1] - 5:26	<b>BERLAND</b> [6] - 27:41, 27:53, 28:41, 29:12, 29:35, 29:41
<b>1099</b> [1] - 28:16		<b>agreement</b> [1] - 30:13	<b>ascertaining</b> [1] - 6:49	<b>Berland</b> [9] - 1:21, 1:34, 27:45, 27:51, 28:2, 28:45, 28:48, 29:56, 30:3
<b>10:00</b> [1] - 1:16	<b>a.m.</b> [3] - 1:16, 2:1, 30:43	<b>ahead</b> [2] - 13:29, 14:50	<b>Assistant</b> [1] - 4:23	<b>best</b> [4] - 8:16, 15:51, 16:33
<b>10:03</b> [1] - 2:1	<b>abandoned</b> [1] - 2:55	<b>Aide</b> [6] - 1:31, 1:32, 1:33, 1:34, 1:35, 1:36	<b>Association</b> [1] - 30:14	<b>better</b> [2] - 8:41, 19:46
<b>1181</b> [2] - 28:34, 30:10	<b>abilities</b> [1] - 4:19	<b>Airborne</b> [2] - 21:38	<b>Assure</b> [3] - 4:8, 17:2, 17:17	<b>between</b> [5] - 6:54, 19:39, 19:42, 26:22
<b>1191</b> [1] - 30:12	<b>ability</b> [3] - 4:4, 4:21, 11:53	<b>Ali</b> [1] - 1:35	<b>assurer</b> [1] - 5:7	<b>beyond</b> [1] - 7:44
<b>11:00</b> [1] - 30:43	<b>able</b> [7] - 4:8, 4:9, 6:48, 6:51, 6:53, 15:52, 18:2	<b>Allan</b> [1] - 13:25	<b>attaching</b> [1] - 5:12	<b>bid</b> [1] - 25:45
<b>12</b> [1] - 2:50	<b>abroad</b> [1] - 2:12	<b>allegations</b> [1] - 4:20	<b>ATTENDANCE</b> [1] - 1:25	<b>big</b> [2] - 19:37, 26:2
<b>15</b> [2] - 15:14, 15:49	<b>absolutely</b> [6] - 6:23, 9:44, 17:24, 18:24, 18:30, 19:51	<b>alleged</b> [1] - 5:35	<b>attending</b> [2] - 2:18, 15:17	<b>bill</b> [10] - 3:49, 4:11, 4:19, 7:24, 7:26, 10:34, 24:20, 24:53, 27:33, 27:46
<b>150</b> [1] - 21:39	<b>abstention</b> [2] - 28:30, 30:9	<b>allegedly</b> [1] - 22:7	<b>attention</b> [1] - 13:30	<b>bill</b> [1] - 4:11
<b>16</b> [2] - 25:49, 25:51	<b>Abstentions</b> [3] - 27:46, 28:9, 30:38	<b>Allegiance</b> [1] - 2:6	<b>Attorney</b> [6] - 3:11, 3:23, 5:39, 8:29, 22:43, 22:56	<b>bit</b> [4] - 3:44, 3:46, 9:23, 24:23
<b>17</b> [1] - 26:23	<b>abuse</b> [1] - 5:30	<b>allow</b> [2] - 7:11, 13:35	<b>Attorney's</b> [3] - 2:49, 5:31, 5:38	<b>Blass</b> [6] - 1:41, 2:28, 3:40, 4:36, 6:33, 7:35
<b>1956</b> [1] - 24:31	<b>access</b> [1] - 27:32	<b>allowed</b> [1] - 20:48	<b>AUDIENCE</b> [1] - 20:34	<b>BLASS</b> [27] - 3:42, 4:43, 4:49, 5:2, 5:33, 6:1, 6:10, 6:21, 6:35, 6:45, 7:17, 7:28, 7:40, 8:3, 8:9, 8:34, 9:5, 9:17, 9:26, 9:43, 9:49, 10:6, 10:12, 10:23, 10:46, 10:53, 12:45
<b>2</b>	<b>accountability</b> [3] - 3:9, 3:18, 22:23	<b>allowing</b> [1] - 20:46	<b>Auditorium</b> [1] - 1:15	<b>blatant</b> [3] - 18:40, 18:49
<b>20</b> [2] - 24:32, 25:1	<b>act</b> [2] - 4:19, 4:20	<b>almost</b> [1] - 24:32	<b>audits</b> [1] - 6:49	<b>bloated</b> [2] - 24:33, 24:35
<b>200</b> [1] - 25:51	<b>Act</b> [1] - 13:23	<b>alone</b> [2] - 10:31, 13:12	<b>August</b> [1] - 25:42	<b>blowers</b> [3] - 4:21, 9:34
<b>2008</b> [1] - 25:40	<b>action</b> [2] - 10:21, 24:55	<b>ALSO</b> [1] - 1:25	<b>Authorizing</b> [1] - 30:12	<b>boards</b> [2] - 4:2, 4:30
<b>2013</b> [3] - 4:13, 4:54, 25:41	<b>actual</b> [3] - 21:48, 24:31, 24:54	<b>amazing</b> [2] - 13:12, 15:14	<b>available</b> [1] - 5:49	<b>boat</b> [1] - 13:27
<b>2017</b> [1] - 4:28	<b>adjoined</b> [2] - 30:41, 30:43	<b>amend</b> [1] - 27:49	<b>awful</b> [1] - 5:17	<b>body</b> [9] - 8:1, 8:39, 8:53, 10:10, 11:43, 13:15, 13:18, 29:20, 29:43
<b>2019</b> [1] - 30:15	<b>Administration</b> [1] - 22:32	<b>amendment</b> [4] - 3:45, 5:52, 10:35, 10:37	<b>Azar</b> [1] - 22:33	<b>bombs</b> [1] - 21:51
<b>2020</b> [2] - 1:16, 24:33	<b>admitting</b> [1] - 18:27	<b>Amendment</b> [2] - 19:52, 25:47	<b>B</b>	<b>book</b> [1] - 22:5
<b>2024</b> [1] - 30:16	<b>adopt</b> [2] - 5:52, 6:12	<b>Amy</b> [1] - 1:28	<b>baby</b> [1] - 22:21	<b>books</b> [3] - 15:54, 15:55, 18:8
<b>2030</b> [1] - 22:35	<b>adopted</b> [2] - 4:28, 10:36	<b>analysis</b> [1] - 8:53	<b>background</b> [1] - 24:50	<b>boot</b> [1] - 26:49
<b>21</b> [1] - 22:35	<b>Adopting</b> [2] - 27:31, 28:16	<b>annual</b> [4] - 3:48, 5:43, 5:47, 8:36	<b>Baisley</b> [1] - 13:24	<b>born</b> [1] - 25:40
<b>21st</b> [1] - 22:40	<b>adopting</b> [1] - 27:49	<b>answer</b> [3] - 14:49, 26:48	<b>balances</b> [1] - 3:3	
<b>22</b> [1] - 21:39	<b>advocate</b> [3] - 8:7, 15:51, 16:32	<b>answerable</b> [1] - 10:38	<b>bang</b> [1] - 21:44	
<b>26</b> [1] - 1:16	<b>afraid</b> [3] - 19:27, 19:30	<b>Anthony</b> [8] - 1:45, 15:52, 18:5, 18:7, 18:8, 21:28, 21:37, 22:46	<b>bankrupt</b> [1] - 24:38	
<b>3</b>	<b>afternoon</b> [2] - 25:29, 25:32	<b>Antiquated</b> [1] - 24:40	<b>Bar</b> [1] - 22:16	
<b>30</b> [2] - 24:43, 25:4	<b>agencies</b> [3] - 4:2, 8:28, 9:10	<b>apart</b> [1] - 16:1	<b>base</b> [1] - 10:15	
<b>300</b> [1] - 1:15	<b>Agency</b> [1] - 26:46	<b>apparent</b> [1] - 8:11	<b>based</b> [1] - 9:7	
<b>31</b> [1] - 30:15		<b>appear</b> [1] - 26:48	<b>bashing</b> [2] - 19:13	
<b>32</b> [1] - 26:6		<b>application</b> [2] - 21:49, 28:34	<b>beat</b> [2] - 26:7	
<b>36</b> [1] - 25:1		<b>appointing</b> [1] - 10:13	<b>beating</b> [1] - 19:12	
<b>3rd</b> [1] - 24:38		<b>appreciate</b> [1] - 9:27	<b>became</b> [1] - 15:16	
<b>4</b>		<b>approval</b> [1] - 30:3	<b>become</b> [4] - 3:9, 3:10, 4:4, 4:5	
<b>4</b> [1] - 22:31		<b>approve</b> [2] - 12:11,	<b>begging</b> [3] - 13:50, 17:12, 17:14	
<b>5</b>			<b>begun</b> [1] - 2:6	
<b>5-0-0-0</b> [1] - 30:10				
<b>5-0-0-0</b> [4] - 27:47, 28:10, 28:32, 30:38				
<b>528</b> [1] - 27:49				
<b>58</b> [1] - 26:29				

# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<p><b>bothering</b> [1] - 22:27  <b>bottom</b> [1] - 10:51  <b>bounds</b> [1] - 4:1  <b>boy</b> [1] - 18:9  <b>boyfriend</b> [2] - 26:18, 26:21  <b>boys</b> [2] - 16:1, 16:18  <b>boys'</b> [1] - 15:50  <b>Braaten</b> [1] - 1:51  <b>brain</b> [1] - 26:29  <b>brave</b> [1] - 15:46  <b>break</b> [1] - 6:53  <b>breaking</b> [1] - 5:19  <b>breath</b> [1] - 15:27  <b>bribery</b> [2] - 19:38, 19:39  <b>bring</b> [5] - 5:37, 7:51, 22:11, 22:15, 26:19  <b>broken</b> [4] - 20:41, 25:52, 26:33  <b>Brook</b> [1] - 26:18  <b>Brookhaven</b> [3] - 2:42, 3:24, 24:24  <b>Brooklyn</b> [1] - 26:12  <b>brothers</b> [1] - 15:54  <b>brought</b> [1] - 18:7  <b>budget</b> [4] - 6:52, 6:55, 9:6, 10:40  <b>Budget</b> [4] - 1:29, 8:54, 8:55, 9:2  <b>budgetary</b> [1] - 6:55  <b>Building</b> [1] - 1:15  <b>built</b> [1] - 5:5  <b>bull</b> [1] - 25:7  <b>Bureau</b> [2] - 8:30, 10:25  <b>bureaucracies</b> [4] - 3:47, 3:52, 4:1  <b>bureaucracy</b> [3] - 3:54, 4:15, 8:42  <b>bureaus</b> [1] - 4:2  <b>Burke</b> [3] - 2:50, 19:27, 19:43  <b>BY</b> [1] - 1:50  <b>bypass</b> [1] - 23:17</p>	<p>13:47, 13:48  <b>career</b> [3] - 7:36, 7:38, 7:46  <b>caring</b> [1] - 16:26  <b>carried</b> [1] - 15:55  <b>Cartright</b> [1] - 13:43  <b>case</b> [4] - 7:48, 24:48, 26:6  <b>caseload</b> [2] - 7:2, 7:5  <b>caseloads</b> [1] - 6:52  <b>cases</b> [7] - 6:55, 7:4, 7:6, 10:27, 26:29  <b>caseworkers</b> [2] - 6:52, 7:3  <b>cell</b> [1] - 21:12  <b>Center</b> [2] - 1:15, 22:6  <b>certain</b> [2] - 3:10, 7:4  <b>certainly</b> [2] - 5:35, 7:36  <b>certificates</b> [1] - 23:2  <b>Chair</b> [1] - 1:20  <b>CHAIRMAN</b> [95] - 2:3, 2:26, 3:27, 3:33, 3:39, 4:35, 6:29, 7:20, 7:31, 9:52, 11:4, 11:14, 11:26, 11:32, 11:42, 11:49, 12:1, 12:13, 12:19, 12:25, 12:35, 12:48, 12:55, 13:8, 14:3, 14:9, 14:15, 14:21, 14:27, 14:33, 14:39, 14:45, 14:52, 15:2, 15:8, 15:20, 15:26, 15:32, 15:38, 16:12, 16:37, 17:38, 17:55, 18:23, 18:29, 18:35, 18:45, 18:51, 20:1, 20:7, 20:31, 21:8, 21:15, 21:21, 21:27, 21:33, 22:45, 22:51, 23:6, 23:12, 23:28, 23:37, 23:45, 23:52, 24:2, 24:8, 24:14, 25:9, 25:15, 25:25, 25:31, 26:38, 27:4, 27:10, 27:16, 27:22, 27:38, 27:44, 28:1, 28:7, 28:23, 28:29, 28:47, 28:54, 29:4, 29:15, 29:23, 29:29, 29:38, 29:51, 30:2, 30:8, 30:21, 30:27, 30:36  <b>Chairman</b> [2] - 1:32, 29:42  <b>Chairperson</b> [1] - 1:19  <b>challenge</b> [2] - 7:51, 9:13  <b>chance</b> [2] - 3:44, 9:35</p>	<p><b>change</b> [1] - 25:7  <b>changed</b> [1] - 21:49  <b>channel</b> [1] - 9:29  <b>Chapter</b> [1] - 27:49  <b>charge</b> [2] - 13:36, 25:44  <b>charged</b> [1] - 25:50  <b>Charter</b> [5] - 3:45, 5:52, 10:34, 10:37, 28:16  <b>check</b> [2] - 2:56, 3:24  <b>checks</b> [1] - 3:3  <b>CHI</b> [1] - 24:37  <b>Chief</b> [7] - 1:28, 1:30, 4:22, 4:23, 4:53, 8:13, 28:51  <b>CHIEF</b> [4] - 29:1, 29:9, 29:18, 29:32  <b>child</b> [9] - 2:54, 2:55, 3:1, 3:2, 3:8, 4:12, 5:30, 18:18, 19:31  <b>Children</b> [1] - 22:32  <b>children</b> [33] - 3:20, 13:47, 13:50, 15:18, 15:46, 15:50, 15:51, 16:2, 16:6, 16:16, 16:19, 16:29, 16:32, 16:33, 16:34, 17:10, 17:12, 17:21, 17:27, 17:42, 17:46, 18:49, 19:31, 19:32, 20:56, 22:19, 25:52, 25:54, 26:3, 26:19, 26:30  <b>choice</b> [1] - 4:14  <b>choked</b> [1] - 26:2  <b>chosen</b> [1] - 22:41  <b>Chris</b> [3] - 18:52, 20:14, 21:16  <b>Christopher</b> [5] - 1:44, 2:48, 18:52, 21:19  <b>Chuck</b> [1] - 23:1  <b>CIBELLI</b> [5] - 21:30, 21:36, 22:54, 23:9, 23:15  <b>Cibelli</b> [3] - 1:45, 21:28, 21:37  <b>Cicale</b> [1] - 13:24  <b>circumstance</b> [1] - 7:47  <b>circumstances</b> [1] - 7:46  <b>City</b> [4] - 4:29, 9:8, 22:29  <b>civil</b> [1] - 28:35  <b>class</b> [1] - 15:14  <b>clean</b> [1] - 25:41  <b>clear</b> [1] - 7:48  <b>Clerk</b> [1] - 13:22  <b>clerk</b> [1] - 2:20  <b>Clerk/Suffolk</b> [1] -</p>	<p>1:28  <b>clients</b> [2] - 20:47, 20:48  <b>clock</b> [1] - 13:30  <b>close</b> [1] - 26:41  <b>Co</b> [2] - 28:35, 30:16  <b>cocaine</b> [2] - 2:42, 3:25  <b>Code</b> [1] - 27:50  <b>College</b> [1] - 15:14  <b>college</b> [1] - 15:17  <b>combat</b> [2] - 21:37, 21:39  <b>comfort</b> [1] - 17:1  <b>coming</b> [2] - 7:25, 14:53  <b>commend</b> [1] - 17:32  <b>Commission</b> [1] - 9:9  <b>Commissioner</b> [3] - 4:13, 5:36, 6:39  <b>commissions</b> [1] - 4:2  <b>COMMITTEE</b> [1] - 1:4  <b>committee</b> [4] - 2:18, 12:42, 17:43, 26:48  <b>Committee</b> [4] - 1:13, 2:5, 3:43, 15:12  <b>common</b> [1] - 15:16  <b>communications</b> [1] - 26:23  <b>communities</b> [1] - 17:53  <b>community</b> [1] - 2:43  <b>complained</b> [1] - 16:3  <b>complaint</b> [1] - 5:30  <b>complaints</b> [1] - 4:19  <b>complete</b> [1] - 7:50  <b>completed</b> [1] - 30:28  <b>Comptroller</b> [3] - 1:38, 1:39, 6:49  <b>Comptroller's</b> [1] - 6:50  <b>concerned</b> [3] - 17:41, 29:6, 29:43  <b>conditions</b> [1] - 30:14  <b>conduct</b> [1] - 5:35  <b>conducted</b> [1] - 8:25  <b>conducting</b> [1] - 8:31  <b>confident</b> [1] - 5:6  <b>connected</b> [2] - 3:55, 22:56  <b>connection</b> [1] - 3:24  <b>considerations</b> [1] - 9:15  <b>considered</b> [1] - 22:16  <b>conspiracy</b> [2] - 25:46  <b>constitutional</b> [2] - 22:11, 22:14  <b>continuing</b> [1] - 22:34  <b>contract</b> [4] - 30:19,</p>	<p>30:22, 30:28, 30:31  <b>contracts</b> [2] - 24:33, 24:35  <b>control</b> [2] - 12:36, 19:53  <b>controlled</b> [1] - 29:46  <b>conversation</b> [1] - 27:24  <b>convinced</b> [2] - 9:7, 9:33  <b>cooperation</b> [1] - 6:49  <b>cop</b> [1] - 2:56  <b>copy</b> [2] - 5:30, 24:54  <b>correct</b> [3] - 2:21, 10:2, 27:5  <b>corrected</b> [1] - 9:36  <b>Corrected</b> [1] - 22:6  <b>correctly</b> [1] - 6:18  <b>correspondence</b> [2] - 2:19, 26:44  <b>corrupt</b> [1] - 19:9  <b>corruption</b> [8] - 2:42, 2:53, 3:18, 12:29, 13:31, 19:35, 19:38, 24:23  <b>Corruptions</b> [1] - 10:25  <b>cost</b> [3] - 5:17, 9:18, 9:21  <b>Counsel</b> [1] - 7:21  <b>Counsel/Suffolk</b> [1] - 1:27  <b>count</b> [1] - 10:20  <b>countries</b> [1] - 23:3  <b>COUNTY</b> [1] - 1:8  <b>County</b> [44] - 1:13, 1:27, 1:28, 1:37, 1:38, 1:39, 3:46, 3:47, 3:54, 4:7, 4:12, 4:19, 4:23, 4:28, 4:31, 4:33, 5:45, 6:17, 7:37, 7:44, 8:27, 8:37, 8:39, 8:52, 9:2, 10:21, 10:29, 10:32, 10:36, 13:22, 14:19, 19:31, 24:22, 25:38, 25:40, 27:32, 27:50, 27:51, 28:17, 28:38, 29:21, 30:12, 30:13  <b>County's</b> [3] - 3:56, 8:44, 9:35  <b>countywide</b> [1] - 29:47  <b>couple</b> [1] - 9:41  <b>courage</b> [2] - 16:55, 17:32  <b>courageous</b> [1] - 15:45  <b>course</b> [3] - 3:53,</p>
<b>C</b>				
<p><b>C.I</b> [1] - 24:49  <b>Cala</b> [1] - 1:33  <b>Calarco</b> [1] - 24:45  <b>capacity</b> [3] - 3:55, 4:25, 8:45  <b>Capital</b> [1] - 8:54  <b>car</b> [4] - 5:20, 5:25, 10:1, 10:15  <b>card</b> [5] - 5:45, 23:16, 23:18, 23:53, 26:39  <b>cards</b> [1] - 2:21  <b>care</b> [4] - 10:51, 13:30,</p>				



# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<p>10:47, 22:2  <b>court</b> [1] - 26:27  <b>Court</b> [7] - 1:51, 4:41, 6:40, 20:45, 22:7, 24:49  <b>Court's</b> [1] - 22:18  <b>courteous</b> [1] - 16:5  <b>courtroom</b> [3] - 19:28, 20:47, 20:48  <b>Courts</b> [3] - 22:13, 22:29  <b>cover</b> [2] - 5:25, 13:13  <b>covered</b> [1] - 2:45  <b>covering</b> [5] - 13:34, 13:38, 13:40, 13:45, 30:14  <b>covers</b> [1] - 5:23  <b>CPS</b> [11] - 3:2, 5:34, 5:35, 6:46, 7:7, 22:21, 22:29, 24:22, 24:48, 26:29  <b>cracks</b> [1] - 7:5  <b>crap</b> [1] - 25:7  <b>crazy</b> [1] - 13:52  <b>create</b> [4] - 3:45, 8:18, 9:28, 10:37  <b>crime</b> [1] - 19:40  <b>crimes</b> [1] - 13:38  <b>criminal</b> [3] - 5:34, 22:9, 22:10  <b>Criminal</b> [1] - 20:45  <b>criminals</b> [1] - 19:41  <b>Crookhaven</b> [1] - 24:24  <b>cry</b> [1] - 24:53  <b>crying</b> [1] - 13:50  <b>Cult</b> [1] - 22:55  <b>culture</b> [3] - 5:5, 5:10, 9:28  <b>custody</b> [1] - 16:33  <b>cut</b> [1] - 25:7  <b>cycle</b> [4] - 26:54, 27:5, 27:14, 27:23</p>	<p><b>decision</b> [2] - 21:43, 22:20  <b>deck</b> [2] - 2:27, 12:49  <b>declassify</b> [1] - 22:3  <b>dedication</b> [1] - 15:50  <b>deeds</b> [1] - 14:19  <b>deep</b> [1] - 15:27  <b>deeply</b> [1] - 17:41  <b>Deer</b> [1] - 16:48  <b>defendant</b> [1] - 5:19  <b>definitely</b> [3] - 17:42, 26:51, 27:25  <b>deleted</b> [1] - 14:19  <b>deliberate</b> [1] - 4:3  <b>DeMarco</b> [2] - 13:26, 19:15  <b>Democrat</b> [1] - 10:50  <b>demotion</b> [1] - 5:12  <b>denied</b> [2] - 26:13, 26:14  <b>department</b> [2] - 6:16, 6:17  <b>Department</b> [9] - 5:10, 8:25, 8:30, 9:9, 19:36, 19:38, 22:28, 26:27, 29:44  <b>departmental</b> [1] - 7:12  <b>Departments</b> [1] - 29:46  <b>departments</b> [5] - 4:3, 6:54, 8:19, 29:7, 29:45  <b>deployment</b> [1] - 21:40  <b>deployments</b> [1] - 21:39  <b>Deputy</b> [3] - 1:28, 1:39, 30:13  <b>Derek</b> [1] - 1:31  <b>DeRosa</b> [1] - 14:1  <b>desk</b> [1] - 19:14  <b>details</b> [2] - 8:37, 8:43  <b>Detective</b> [1] - 19:37  <b>determine</b> [1] - 6:51  <b>deterrent</b> [1] - 8:18  <b>develops</b> [1] - 6:54  <b>device</b> [1] - 5:44  <b>devices</b> [1] - 5:12  <b>diaper</b> [1] - 15:56  <b>died</b> [1] - 22:7  <b>different</b> [1] - 26:16  <b>difficult</b> [2] - 8:52, 17:9  <b>diligence</b> [1] - 22:8  <b>direct</b> [1] - 26:21  <b>direction</b> [1] - 25:5  <b>Director</b> [1] - 26:45  <b>disagree</b> [1] - 24:52</p>	<p><b>disciplining</b> [1] - 16:16  <b>discrepancies</b> [1] - 9:36  <b>discretion</b> [1] - 5:39  <b>discuss</b> [1] - 7:24  <b>discussed</b> [1] - 4:22  <b>discussing</b> [1] - 8:24  <b>disfavor</b> [1] - 5:13  <b>disgrace</b> [1] - 3:20  <b>disputing</b> [1] - 9:13  <b>District</b> [7] - 2:49, 3:10, 3:22, 5:31, 5:38, 10:26  <b>districts</b> [1] - 4:30  <b>DIVERSITY</b> [1] - 1:4  <b>Diversity</b> [2] - 1:13, 2:5  <b>division</b> [3] - 8:55, 8:56, 9:3  <b>divorce</b> [1] - 25:42  <b>divorced</b> [1] - 26:19  <b>dollar</b> [1] - 3:1  <b>done</b> [11] - 5:26, 5:45, 5:48, 6:18, 6:42, 8:16, 8:24, 17:52, 23:53, 24:46, 24:51  <b>Donnelly</b> [9] - 1:20, 1:36, 2:7, 7:32, 16:38, 17:41, 20:54, 27:39, 30:37  <b>DONNELLY</b> [16] - 7:34, 7:43, 8:6, 8:22, 8:49, 9:12, 9:20, 9:40, 9:46, 16:41, 16:47, 16:54, 17:16, 17:23, 17:31, 27:35  <b>door</b> [3] - 17:11, 18:17, 26:22  <b>doors</b> [1] - 18:16  <b>Douglas</b> [1] - 1:39  <b>down</b> [7] - 12:2, 16:31, 17:13, 17:18, 21:44, 21:48, 22:9  <b>draconic</b> [1] - 24:40  <b>draft</b> [1] - 24:54  <b>drastic</b> [1] - 10:44  <b>Drive</b> [1] - 1:15  <b>drugs</b> [5] - 13:39, 19:40, 25:45  <b>DSS</b> [8] - 4:13, 4:47, 5:29, 6:39, 6:41, 24:22, 24:37, 24:44  <b>due</b> [1] - 22:8  <b>during</b> [3] - 16:49, 26:8, 26:53  <b>duties</b> [1] - 6:17  <b>duty</b> [1] - 22:8  <b>DuWayne</b> [1] - 13:42</p>	<h2>E</h2> <p><b>early</b> [1] - 9:32  <b>earnest</b> [1] - 6:11  <b>easy</b> [1] - 16:2  <b>eating</b> [2] - 18:5, 18:8  <b>education</b> [2] - 15:15, 15:52  <b>effectiveness</b> [1] - 9:13  <b>efficiency</b> [2] - 4:9, 6:22  <b>eight</b> [2] - 11:39, 24:41  <b>eight-year-old</b> [1] - 24:41  <b>elected</b> [1] - 5:39  <b>Elizabeth</b> [1] - 1:29  <b>ELLIS</b> [1] - 2:23  <b>Ellis</b> [1] - 1:28  <b>emotion</b> [1] - 17:2  <b>empanelled</b> [1] - 4:26  <b>employees</b> [1] - 9:29  <b>Employment</b> [1] - 27:50  <b>employment</b> [1] - 30:15  <b>empty</b> [1] - 17:50  <b>encourages</b> [1] - 16:23  <b>encouraging</b> [1] - 16:17  <b>ended</b> [1] - 8:13  <b>endicratic</b> [1] - 25:6  <b>enforcement</b> [1] - 7:9  <b>ensure</b> [2] - 4:9, 27:50  <b>entire</b> [1] - 17:18  <b>entities</b> [3] - 8:36, 24:35, 29:6  <b>entity</b> [1] - 8:43  <b>episode</b> [1] - 5:18  <b>episodes</b> [1] - 8:14  <b>Epstein</b> [1] - 22:6  <b>escorted</b> [1] - 12:14  <b>especially</b> [5] - 10:30, 13:47, 18:2, 24:37, 24:51  <b>essentially</b> [1] - 9:3  <b>establish</b> [1] - 28:16  <b>Establishing</b> [1] - 28:34  <b>Eva</b> [2] - 12:53, 12:56  <b>Evan</b> [1] - 1:15  <b>evidence</b> [1] - 22:1  <b>Ewa</b> [10] - 1:42, 12:50, 15:9, 15:21, 16:38, 16:42, 17:39, 17:56, 18:36, 18:40  <b>exactly</b> [3] - 10:19,</p>	<p>10:54, 18:13  <b>examinations</b> [1] - 28:35  <b>excellent</b> [1] - 9:27  <b>excuse</b> [1] - 19:12  <b>Exec</b> [2] - 28:35, 30:16  <b>execute</b> [1] - 30:13  <b>Executive</b> [4] - 6:54, 6:56, 10:36, 30:12  <b>Executive's</b> [2] - 1:37, 28:38  <b>exempt</b> [2] - 29:44  <b>expand</b> [1] - 27:32  <b>expect</b> [2] - 3:17  <b>expense</b> [1] - 10:13  <b>experience</b> [3] - 3:52, 6:39, 6:40  <b>Explorers</b> [2] - 29:7, 29:20  <b>extended</b> [2] - 29:27, 29:30  <b>extensively</b> [1] - 17:40  <b>extent</b> [1] - 17:47  <b>extortion</b> [1] - 19:40  <b>extra</b> [2] - 6:19, 8:19  <b>eyes</b> [4] - 4:8, 4:27, 6:19, 8:20</p>
			<h2>F</h2> <p><b>fact</b> [2] - 10:43, 24:45  <b>factor</b> [1] - 8:18  <b>failed</b> [1] - 22:41  <b>failure</b> [1] - 7:50  <b>Fair</b> [1] - 27:50  <b>fair</b> [1] - 8:53  <b>falls</b> [1] - 7:4  <b>false</b> [1] - 26:1  <b>families</b> [2] - 20:56, 22:35  <b>Families</b> [1] - 22:33  <b>Family</b> [8] - 4:41, 6:40, 20:44, 20:45, 20:53, 22:7, 22:13, 22:29  <b>family</b> [1] - 17:4  <b>far</b> [1] - 24:53  <b>farming</b> [1] - 24:32  <b>father</b> [1] - 2:54  <b>favor</b> [5] - 27:45, 28:8, 28:30, 30:9, 30:37  <b>FBI</b> [8] - 4:54, 4:56, 8:25, 21:53, 21:56, 22:25, 22:27, 25:50  <b>feared</b> [1] - 19:27  <b>February</b> [1] - 1:16  <b>Fed</b> [1] - 25:45  <b>Federal</b> [8] - 3:53, 4:26, 4:56, 8:12, 8:45, 10:20, 22:32, 25:44</p>	

# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<p><b>fee</b> [2] - 28:34, 29:44  <b>fellow</b> [2] - 12:40, 26:45  <b>felonies</b> [1] - 8:13  <b>few</b> [2] - 22:49, 24:51  <b>fields</b> [1] - 24:32  <b>fight</b> [3] - 15:45, 24:23, 25:1  <b>fighting</b> [2] - 22:19  <b>fight</b> [1] - 16:17  <b>fill</b> [2] - 23:53, 26:39  <b>finally</b> [5] - 3:49, 6:56, 14:13, 14:19, 25:43  <b>financial</b> [1] - 8:52  <b>fine</b> [1] - 13:3  <b>fire</b> [1] - 29:45  <b>Fire</b> [1] - 29:46  <b>fred</b> [3] - 14:37, 14:43  <b>Firehouse</b> [1] - 16:48  <b>First</b> [2] - 19:52, 25:47  <b>first</b> [7] - 2:27, 4:32, 4:54, 10:15, 15:51, 21:40, 26:13  <b>five</b> [1] - 10:43  <b>five-year</b> [1] - 10:43  <b>fix</b> [1] - 20:55  <b>flash</b> [1] - 21:44  <b>flash-bang</b> [1] - 21:44  <b>Florida</b> [1] - 26:26  <b>follow</b> [4] - 5:40, 5:46, 9:56, 10:19  <b>follow-up</b> [2] - 5:46, 10:19  <b>following</b> [1] - 21:42  <b>followup</b> [1] - 8:40  <b>food</b> [1] - 18:9  <b>forged</b> [1] - 14:19  <b>forgetting</b> [1] - 17:27  <b>former</b> [1] - 13:14  <b>forms</b> [1] - 22:1  <b>forward</b> [5] - 16:23, 17:33, 23:19, 25:26, 26:48  <b>four</b> [2] - 25:52, 26:22  <b>freakin'</b> [1] - 24:43  <b>free</b> [1] - 24:56  <b>freedom</b> [2] - 2:13, 10:50  <b>friend</b> [3] - 16:25, 16:26, 17:1  <b>friends</b> [2] - 15:16, 19:29  <b>front</b> [3] - 2:31, 7:51, 16:30  <b>fucking</b> [1] - 21:13  <b>fulfilling</b> [1] - 22:35  <b>full</b> [1] - 16:32  <b>fullest</b> [1] - 17:47  <b>fun</b> [1] - 13:52</p>	<p><b>function</b> [3] - 8:18, 9:28, 10:40  <b>functions</b> [1] - 8:38  <b>fund</b> [2] - 22:30, 22:34  <b>future</b> [1] - 6:16</p> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>G</b></p> <p><b>Gaming</b> [1] - 9:9  <b>Gellerstein</b> [1] - 1:30  <b>General</b> [25] - 3:46, 4:7, 4:18, 4:55, 5:40, 5:44, 6:41, 6:51, 7:2, 7:8, 7:11, 7:54, 8:7, 8:29, 8:30, 8:38, 9:32, 9:33, 13:18, 13:33, 13:36, 19:8, 22:43, 22:56, 28:17  <b>General's</b> [2] - 5:46, 6:47  <b>Gentlemen</b> [2] - 18:55, 30:40  <b>GIRONDA</b> [11] - 2:30, 2:39, 3:30, 3:36, 11:7, 11:17, 11:38, 11:52, 12:4, 12:10, 12:31  <b>Gironda</b> [2] - 1:40, 2:27  <b>given</b> [1] - 2:12  <b>glaring</b> [1] - 8:15  <b>God</b> [5] - 15:18, 17:5, 18:40, 18:49  <b>Gonzalez</b> [8] - 1:19, 1:32, 13:16, 13:29, 14:25, 20:53, 27:32, 29:42  <b>GONZALEZ</b> [95] - 2:3, 2:26, 3:27, 3:33, 3:39, 4:35, 6:29, 7:20, 7:31, 9:52, 11:4, 11:14, 11:26, 11:32, 11:42, 11:49, 12:1, 12:13, 12:19, 12:25, 12:35, 12:48, 12:55, 13:8, 14:3, 14:9, 14:15, 14:21, 14:27, 14:33, 14:39, 14:45, 14:52, 15:2, 15:8, 15:20, 15:26, 15:32, 15:38, 16:12, 16:37, 17:38, 17:55, 18:23, 18:29, 18:35, 18:45, 18:51, 20:1, 20:7, 20:31, 21:8, 21:15, 21:21, 21:27, 21:33, 22:45, 22:51, 23:6, 23:12, 23:28, 23:37, 23:45, 23:52, 24:2, 24:8, 24:14,</p>	<p>25:9, 25:15, 25:25, 25:31, 26:38, 27:4, 27:10, 27:16, 27:22, 27:38, 27:44, 28:1, 28:7, 28:23, 28:29, 28:47, 28:54, 29:4, 29:15, 29:23, 29:29, 29:38, 29:51, 30:2, 30:8, 30:21, 30:27, 30:36  <b>goodies</b> [1] - 18:7  <b>government</b> [3] - 10:29, 26:9  <b>GOVERNMENT</b> [1] - 1:2  <b>Government</b> [9] - 1:12, 2:4, 4:29, 4:56, 8:39, 10:20, 22:32, 22:43, 25:44  <b>governments</b> [1] - 10:28  <b>grab</b> [1] - 22:31  <b>grabbing</b> [1] - 19:28  <b>Grand</b> [1] - 4:26  <b>grandchildren</b> [1] - 17:42  <b>granddaughter</b> [1] - 18:1  <b>grandson</b> [1] - 17:56  <b>gratitude</b> [1] - 17:1  <b>great</b> [4] - 3:13, 6:46, 17:1, 25:53  <b>greater</b> [1] - 19:46  <b>Gregory</b> [5] - 1:31, 1:41, 2:28, 3:40, 13:42  <b>grenade</b> [2] - 21:44  <b>Griffing</b> [1] - 1:15  <b>grow</b> [1] - 3:56  <b>growing</b> [1] - 26:20  <b>grown</b> [2] - 3:47, 4:1  <b>Guardians</b> [1] - 20:46  <b>guess</b> [1] - 26:11  <b>guilt</b> [1] - 6:46  <b>guns</b> [1] - 21:50  <b>Guy</b> [1] - 1:33  <b>guys</b> [15] - 13:26, 13:28, 13:45, 13:49, 15:33, 17:36, 17:51, 18:20, 18:33, 19:7, 19:8, 21:39, 24:30, 24:41, 27:27</p> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>H</b></p> <p><b>half</b> [2] - 2:56, 15:6  <b>hand</b> [7] - 21:44, 23:22, 23:25, 27:36, 27:54, 28:21, 30:6  <b>Handed</b> [1] - 16:8</p>	<p><b>handling</b> [1] - 22:14  <b>handwriting</b> [1] - 23:56  <b>hanging</b> [1] - 13:42  <b>Hann</b> [1] - 1:32  <b>happy</b> [1] - 16:5  <b>hard</b> [2] - 8:53, 8:54  <b>Head</b> [1] - 4:47  <b>head</b> [2] - 19:13  <b>Health</b> [1] - 22:33  <b>healthy</b> [1] - 15:56  <b>hear</b> [5] - 2:33, 13:15, 13:19, 19:30, 24:35  <b>heard</b> [2] - 5:29, 17:17  <b>hearing</b> [7] - 27:33, 27:42, 27:46, 27:51, 28:10, 28:18, 28:31  <b>Hearing</b> [3] - 27:47, 28:10, 28:32  <b>heartbreaking</b> [1] - 18:10  <b>heartwarming</b> [1] - 16:19  <b>held</b> [2] - 1:14, 5:13  <b>hell</b> [2] - 24:34, 24:36  <b>hello</b> [1] - 2:32  <b>help</b> [3] - 17:1, 17:4, 17:11  <b>helped</b> [1] - 2:51  <b>helping</b> [2] - 2:50, 22:5  <b>Herbst</b> [2] - 1:46, 24:6  <b>HERBST</b> [9] - 23:21, 23:31, 23:40, 23:48, 23:55, 24:5, 24:11, 24:17, 25:19  <b>herself</b> [1] - 5:34  <b>hesitate</b> [1] - 27:25  <b>hi</b> [7] - 6:33, 7:35, 16:42, 18:52, 23:46, 28:51, 29:5  <b>Hickey</b> [1] - 19:11  <b>Hinrichs</b> [2] - 13:23, 13:42  <b>hire</b> [1] - 19:8  <b>hit</b> [1] - 26:22  <b>Hobbs</b> [1] - 13:23  <b>hold</b> [4] - 16:38, 18:2, 25:17  <b>holler</b> [1] - 27:25  <b>home</b> [3] - 16:1, 25:52  <b>homes</b> [1] - 14:1  <b>honestly</b> [2] - 23:41, 24:40  <b>honorable</b> [1] - 5:15  <b>honored</b> [1] - 16:25  <b>hope</b> [6] - 6:11, 16:24, 16:25, 17:9, 17:50  <b>hopefully</b> [1] - 29:49</p>	<p><b>horrible</b> [3] - 17:28, 17:53, 18:19  <b>horrific</b> [3] - 7:45, 13:31, 18:1  <b>horseshoe</b> [1] - 17:3  <b>hour</b> [1] - 2:56  <b>house</b> [7] - 2:56, 13:39, 17:21, 17:27, 21:46, 25:54, 26:17  <b>HOUSING</b> [1] - 1:2  <b>Housing</b> [1] - 1:12  <b>hug</b> [1] - 16:18  <b>Human</b> [1] - 22:33  <b>humble</b> [1] - 16:6  <b>hundred</b> [1] - 26:11  <b>hysterically</b> [1] - 19:14</p> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>I</b></p> <p><b>I.G</b> [14] - 3:48, 4:20, 4:30, 5:16, 5:17, 7:9, 9:7, 9:9, 9:10, 10:14, 10:28, 10:31, 10:38, 10:50  <b>I.G.'s</b> [3] - 9:28, 10:40  <b>I.R</b> [6] - 27:31, 27:49, 28:16, 28:34, 30:10, 30:12  <b>ignore</b> [1] - 5:39  <b>imagine</b> [3] - 4:30, 17:56  <b>important</b> [2] - 9:14, 16:29  <b>improper</b> [1] - 7:3  <b>IN</b> [1] - 1:25  <b>in-laws</b> [1] - 3:1  <b>Independent</b> [1] - 28:16  <b>independent</b> [3] - 5:7, 13:18, 22:42  <b>indicates</b> [1] - 10:31  <b>indications</b> [1] - 8:10  <b>individual</b> [1] - 5:4  <b>inefficiencies</b> [1] - 9:36  <b>INFORMATION</b> [1] - 1:4  <b>Information</b> [2] - 1:13, 2:5  <b>inherent</b> [1] - 3:55  <b>inhibited</b> [1] - 9:30  <b>injured</b> [1] - 21:40  <b>innocent</b> [1] - 24:40  <b>inquiry</b> [1] - 29:42  <b>inspect</b> [1] - 19:32  <b>Inspector</b> [24] - 3:45, 4:7, 4:18, 4:55, 5:40, 5:44, 5:46, 6:41, 6:47, 6:51, 7:2, 7:8,</p>
---	--	---	---	--

# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<p>7:11, 7:54, 8:7, 8:29, 8:38, 9:32, 9:33, 13:18, 13:33, 13:36, 19:8, 28:17</p> <p><b>inspired</b> [1] - 15:49</p> <p><b>institutions</b> [1] - 26:17</p> <p><b>insufficient</b> [2] - 6:52, 6:53</p> <p><b>insular</b> [1] - 4:4</p> <p><b>insurance</b> [3] - 4:27, 6:24, 8:17</p> <p><b>insurer</b> [1] - 5:7</p> <p><b>integrity</b> [3] - 4:9, 5:7, 6:22</p> <p><b>intellectual</b> [1] - 15:47</p> <p><b>interact</b> [1] - 6:41</p> <p><b>interest</b> [2] - 22:18</p> <p><b>interested</b> [2] - 1:48, 7:55</p> <p><b>interesting</b> [4] - 4:11, 4:40, 8:50, 13:43</p> <p><b>internal</b> [1] - 7:12</p> <p><b>internship</b> [1] - 10:24</p> <p><b>introduced</b> [1] - 15:54</p> <p><b>INTRODUCTORY</b> [1] - 28:12</p> <p><b>Introductory</b> [1] - 28:14</p> <p><b>investigate</b> [5] - 4:14, 4:15, 4:24, 4:26, 19:8</p> <p><b>investigated</b> [1] - 4:54</p> <p><b>investigating</b> [3] - 13:22, 13:23, 14:1</p> <p><b>investigation</b> [3] - 7:12, 22:28, 22:42</p> <p><b>investigations</b> [3] - 8:25, 8:31, 21:53</p> <p><b>investigator</b> [1] - 7:10</p> <p><b>investigators</b> [2] - 8:44, 8:45</p> <p><b>investigatory</b> [2] - 7:6, 9:22</p> <p><b>involved</b> [1] - 10:28</p> <p><b>Iraq</b> [1] - 21:39</p> <p><b>Island</b> [1] - 25:2</p> <p><b>issue</b> [2] - 21:42, 26:52</p> <p><b>itself</b> [5] - 4:6, 4:15, 9:30, 9:37</p>	<p><b>job</b> [4] - 3:8, 13:49, 19:46, 24:56</p> <p><b>jobs</b> [1] - 3:19</p> <p><b>John</b> [3] - 1:38, 13:26, 24:34</p> <p><b>joke</b> [2] - 21:13</p> <p><b>Judge</b> [14] - 4:41, 6:40, 13:23, 13:24, 13:25, 13:39, 13:42, 24:49, 25:49</p> <p><b>Judges</b> [3] - 19:39, 20:45</p> <p><b>jumping</b> [1] - 19:28</p> <p><b>June</b> [2] - 5:24, 26:26</p> <p><b>jurisdictions</b> [1] - 9:38</p> <p><b>Jury</b> [1] - 4:26</p> <p><b>justice</b> [2] - 8:24, 26:4</p> <p><b>Justice</b> [2] - 8:25, 8:30</p> <p><b>Justyna</b> [7] - 15:13, 15:47, 15:49, 15:54, 16:3, 16:27, 18:49</p>	<p>22:26, 24:43, 25:4, 26:25</p> <p><b>late</b> [2] - 3:1, 8:15</p> <p><b>laughed</b> [1] - 13:52</p> <p><b>laughing</b> [1] - 19:14</p> <p><b>Laughter</b> [1] - 23:43</p> <p><b>LaValle</b> [2] - 14:7, 14:37</p> <p><b>law</b> [5] - 7:9, 17:47, 22:9, 22:10, 28:9</p> <p><b>Law</b> [4] - 20:46, 27:31, 27:49, 28:16</p> <p><b>laws</b> [2] - 3:1, 27:32</p> <p><b>lawsuit</b> [2] - 5:18, 9:31</p> <p><b>Lawyers</b> [1] - 20:46</p> <p><b>layer</b> [1] - 8:41</p> <p><b>leads</b> [2] - 5:3, 7:47</p> <p><b>leaps</b> [1] - 4:1</p> <p><b>learned</b> [1] - 16:21</p> <p><b>lease</b> [1] - 10:15</p> <p><b>leasing</b> [1] - 10:2</p> <p><b>least</b> [1] - 5:11</p> <p><b>leave</b> [2] - 22:27, 22:55</p> <p><b>leaves</b> [1] - 10:35</p> <p><b>led</b> [2] - 5:4, 5:11</p> <p><b>left</b> [2] - 21:43, 25:53</p> <p><b>LEG</b> [22] - 7:34, 7:43, 8:6, 8:22, 8:49, 9:12, 9:20, 9:40, 9:46, 16:41, 16:47, 16:54, 17:16, 17:23, 17:31, 27:35, 27:41, 27:53, 28:41, 29:12, 29:35, 29:41</p> <p><b>LEG. KENNEDY</b> [4] - 7:23, 20:40, 28:20, 30:5</p> <p><b>LEG. MC CAFFREY</b> [7] - 6:32, 6:38, 7:14, 28:4, 28:26, 30:24, 30:33</p> <p><b>LEG. TROTTA</b> [16] - 4:38, 4:46, 4:52, 5:22, 5:54, 6:4, 6:14, 6:26, 9:55, 10:9, 10:18, 10:42, 10:49, 11:1, 12:16, 19:3</p> <p><b>legal</b> [2] - 21:42, 22:17</p> <p><b>legislation</b> [1] - 10:36</p> <p><b>Legislative</b> [1] - 1:14</p> <p><b>legislator</b> [1] - 30:9</p> <p><b>Legislator</b> [34] - 1:19, 1:20, 1:21, 1:22, 1:23, 1:26, 1:33, 1:34, 1:35, 1:36, 2:7, 4:36, 6:30, 7:21, 7:32, 9:53, 10:1, 11:5, 15:12, 16:38, 17:41, 27:39, 27:45,</p>	<p>28:2, 28:8, 28:24, 28:30, 28:45, 28:48, 29:39, 30:3, 30:37</p> <p><b>Legislators</b> [3] - 2:40, 17:44, 26:45</p> <p><b>LEGISLATURE</b> [1] - 1:8</p> <p><b>Legislature</b> [12] - 1:14, 1:27, 1:28, 4:40, 5:49, 5:51, 8:39, 10:3, 10:35, 10:37, 18:56, 30:31</p> <p><b>legitimacy</b> [1] - 21:52</p> <p><b>Les</b> [1] - 24:25</p> <p><b>Leslie</b> [1] - 1:22</p> <p><b>Letitia</b> [1] - 22:40</p> <p><b>letters</b> [2] - 15:53, 26:21</p> <p><b>level</b> [6] - 3:52, 3:53, 3:54, 8:44, 8:45</p> <p><b>lie</b> [1] - 22:21</p> <p><b>lied</b> [2] - 21:53, 21:56</p> <p><b>Lieutenant</b> [1] - 19:11</p> <p><b>life</b> [4] - 3:17, 16:26, 24:41, 25:41</p> <p><b>line</b> [2] - 21:44, 21:49</p> <p><b>lines</b> [1] - 26:22</p> <p><b>lingo</b> [1] - 8:56</p> <p><b>listening</b> [1] - 18:33</p> <p><b>litany</b> [1] - 5:23</p> <p><b>live</b> [2] - 25:55, 25:56</p> <p><b>lived</b> [1] - 25:41</p> <p><b>lives</b> [4] - 2:12, 2:13, 18:19, 21:1</p> <p><b>Local</b> [2] - 27:31, 27:49</p> <p><b>local</b> [2] - 10:28, 10:29</p> <p><b>locally</b> [1] - 29:46</p> <p><b>Loeb</b> [3] - 1:44, 18:52, 21:19</p> <p><b>LOEB</b> [10] - 18:54, 19:6, 19:20, 19:26, 20:10, 20:16, 20:22, 20:37, 20:43, 21:11</p> <p><b>look</b> [7] - 3:56, 8:35, 8:46, 13:29, 16:23, 23:2, 23:4</p> <p><b>looking</b> [1] - 29:45</p> <p><b>looks</b> [1] - 22:29</p> <p><b>Lora</b> [1] - 1:30</p> <p><b>loss</b> [1] - 4:12</p> <p><b>lost</b> [2] - 21:39, 26:17</p> <p><b>love</b> [5] - 16:6, 16:19, 16:20, 16:34, 24:34</p> <p><b>loving</b> [1] - 16:17</p> <p><b>Lucas</b> [2] - 2:44, 3:23</p> <p><b>Lucia</b> [1] - 1:51</p> <p><b>lying</b> [2] - 20:49</p>	<h2>M</h2> <p><b>machine</b> [1] - 21:50</p> <p><b>Mackenzie</b> [1] - 13:24</p> <p><b>major</b> [1] - 8:38</p> <p><b>majority</b> [4] - 5:14, 5:52, 6:2, 6:5</p> <p><b>man</b> [4] - 7:51, 17:18, 17:21, 22:36</p> <p><b>Margiotta</b> [1] - 26:47</p> <p><b>Marie</b> [8] - 1:43, 12:49, 14:4, 14:10, 14:22, 14:34, 15:3</p> <p><b>marie</b> [2] - 14:16, 14:40</p> <p><b>marijuana</b> [2] - 25:44, 25:51</p> <p><b>married</b> [1] - 26:28</p> <p><b>marvelous</b> [1] - 5:44</p> <p><b>math</b> [1] - 15:14</p> <p><b>mathematics</b> [1] - 15:15</p> <p><b>matrimonial</b> [1] - 22:14</p> <p><b>matter</b> [1] - 24:45</p> <p><b>matters</b> [1] - 22:14</p> <p><b>Maxine</b> [1] - 1:14</p> <p><b>MCC</b> [1] - 26:11</p> <p><b>McCaffrey</b> [6] - 1:23, 1:33, 6:30, 28:8, 28:30</p> <p><b>McPartland</b> [1] - 2:48</p> <p><b>mean</b> [2] - 5:23, 26:32</p> <p><b>means</b> [1] - 18:5</p> <p><b>measure</b> [2] - 4:33, 6:46</p> <p><b>medication</b> [2] - 26:10, 26:12</p> <p><b>meeting</b> [6] - 1:12, 2:1, 2:5, 2:18, 7:36, 30:43</p> <p><b>meetings</b> [1] - 13:12</p> <p><b>Melville</b> [1] - 22:25</p> <p><b>MEMBER</b> [1] - 20:34</p> <p><b>member</b> [1] - 22:17</p> <p><b>Members</b> [2] - 3:43, 15:12</p> <p><b>MEMBERS</b> [1] - 1:18</p> <p><b>Mendelsohn</b> [1] - 13:26</p> <p><b>mentioned</b> [1] - 4:39</p> <p><b>message</b> [1] - 3:11</p> <p><b>Messina</b> [1] - 13:25</p> <p><b>met</b> [3] - 15:13, 16:18, 16:48</p> <p><b>Metropolitan</b> [1] - 22:6</p> <p><b>mic</b> [2] - 2:37, 13:51</p> <p><b>Michael</b> [4] - 1:46,</p>
<h2>J</h2>	<h2>K</h2>			
<p><b>Jack</b> [2] - 1:37, 28:38</p> <p><b>James</b> [1] - 22:40</p> <p><b>January</b> [4] - 22:40, 24:39, 30:15</p> <p><b>Jeffrey</b> [1] - 22:6</p> <p><b>Jennifer</b> [1] - 1:32</p> <p><b>jimmy</b> [1] - 2:50</p>	<p><b>Karen</b> [1] - 1:36</p> <p><b>keep</b> [4] - 13:33, 20:14, 20:20</p> <p><b>keeping</b> [1] - 21:43</p> <p><b>Keith</b> [1] - 22:56</p> <p><b>Kennedy</b> [7] - 1:22, 1:35, 1:38, 3:5, 7:21, 28:24, 30:9</p> <p><b>kept</b> [1] - 22:27</p> <p><b>Kev</b> [1] - 3:28</p> <p><b>Kevin</b> [5] - 1:23, 1:40, 2:27, 23:16, 23:17</p> <p><b>kidding</b> [1] - 13:28</p> <p><b>kidnapped</b> [1] - 26:25</p> <p><b>kids</b> [4] - 17:53, 18:19, 20:50, 26:25</p> <p><b>killed</b> [1] - 2:54</p> <p><b>killing</b> [2] - 20:56, 21:2</p> <p><b>kilos</b> [1] - 25:51</p> <p><b>kind</b> [5] - 4:27, 5:4, 9:22, 16:5, 16:17</p> <p><b>kiss</b> [1] - 16:18</p> <p><b>Klafter</b> [1] - 1:36</p> <p><b>knocked</b> [3] - 17:10, 18:16, 18:17</p> <p><b>known</b> [1] - 5:8</p> <p><b>knows</b> [1] - 24:44</p>			
	<h2>L</h2>			
	<p><b>Ladies</b> [2] - 18:55, 30:40</p> <p><b>language</b> [2] - 19:12, 27:32</p> <p><b>large</b> [1] - 9:3</p> <p><b>last</b> [6] - 6:15, 13:48,</p>			

# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<p>1:47, 24:6, 25:35  <b>might</b> [3] - 8:16, 9:29, 24:42  <b>Mike</b> [1] - 24:9  <b>military</b> [1] - 21:43  <b>million</b> [1] - 9:31  <b>minds</b> [1] - 2:45  <b>minute</b> [1] - 24:42  <b>minutes</b> [5] - 11:39, 13:16, 19:54, 20:17, 20:23  <b>mirrors</b> [1] - 29:19  <b>misconduct</b> [1] - 10:50  <b>mishaps</b> [1] - 4:16  <b>modernize</b> [1] - 24:30  <b>mom</b> [1] - 24:44  <b>moment</b> [2] - 2:11, 2:19  <b>Moment</b> [1] - 2:15  <b>moments</b> [1] - 16:25  <b>money</b> [4] - 5:17, 14:56, 22:31, 24:38  <b>monitoring</b> [1] - 10:21  <b>months</b> [5] - 25:43, 25:49, 25:51, 26:22, 26:23  <b>morning</b> [13] - 2:4, 2:17, 2:31, 3:43, 7:35, 13:6, 13:9, 16:55, 18:55, 21:31, 21:34, 29:2, 29:5  <b>most</b> [1] - 25:41  <b>mother</b> [3] - 15:47, 16:34, 25:53  <b>motion</b> [10] - 27:33, 27:39, 28:18, 28:24, 28:42, 28:45, 28:48, 29:52, 29:56, 30:16  <b>Motion</b> [1] - 27:51  <b>motioning</b> [1] - 30:22  <b>move</b> [2] - 26:41, 30:12  <b>moved</b> [1] - 25:40  <b>moving</b> [3] - 27:27, 27:31, 28:14  <b>MR</b> [65] - 2:30, 2:39, 3:30, 3:36, 3:42, 4:43, 4:49, 5:2, 5:33, 6:1, 6:10, 6:21, 6:35, 6:45, 7:17, 7:28, 7:40, 8:3, 8:9, 8:34, 9:5, 9:17, 9:26, 9:43, 9:49, 10:6, 10:12, 10:23, 10:46, 10:53, 11:7, 11:17, 11:38, 11:52, 12:4, 12:10, 12:31, 12:45, 18:54, 19:6, 19:20, 19:26, 20:10, 20:16, 20:22,</p>	<p>20:37, 20:43, 21:11, 21:30, 21:36, 22:54, 23:9, 23:15, 23:21, 23:31, 23:40, 23:48, 23:55, 24:5, 24:11, 24:17, 25:19, 25:28, 25:34, 28:50  <b>MS</b> [72] - 2:23, 2:36, 6:7, 11:11, 11:20, 11:23, 11:29, 11:35, 11:46, 12:7, 12:22, 12:28, 12:52, 13:2, 13:5, 13:11, 14:6, 14:12, 14:18, 14:24, 14:30, 14:36, 14:42, 14:48, 14:55, 15:5, 15:11, 15:23, 15:29, 15:35, 15:41, 15:44, 16:15, 16:44, 16:51, 17:8, 17:20, 17:26, 17:35, 17:49, 18:4, 18:12, 18:15, 18:26, 18:32, 18:39, 18:42, 18:48, 19:17, 19:23, 20:4, 20:13, 20:19, 20:25, 20:28, 21:5, 21:18, 21:24, 22:48, 23:24, 23:34, 25:12, 25:22, 27:1, 27:7, 27:13, 27:19, 28:44, 29:26, 29:55, 30:18, 30:30  <b>municipality</b> [1] - 29:47</p>	<p>22:1, 26:19  <b>New</b> [12] - 1:16, 6:50, 7:49, 8:29, 9:8, 10:26, 22:28, 22:30, 22:43, 24:38  <b>new</b> [1] - 26:6  <b>Newsday</b> [2] - 5:23, 5:25  <b>next</b> [9] - 3:40, 10:19, 12:49, 15:56, 18:52, 21:28, 26:54, 27:5, 27:14  <b>Nice</b> [1] - 6:33  <b>nice</b> [3] - 6:36, 7:15, 26:21  <b>nights</b> [1] - 16:4  <b>Nix</b> [1] - 1:37  <b>NIX</b> [1] - 28:50  <b>none</b> [2] - 17:28, 19:46  <b>nonsensical</b> [1] - 24:48  <b>nonstop</b> [1] - 18:5  <b>note</b> [1] - 3:54  <b>nothing</b> [18] - 2:41, 3:12, 3:16, 5:26, 6:48, 7:50, 13:53, 18:20, 19:32, 20:55, 21:1, 21:12, 23:49, 24:12, 24:45, 26:21, 26:34  <b>nowhere</b> [1] - 2:41  <b>number</b> [1] - 9:29  <b>numbers</b> [2] - 7:5, 15:53  <b>NXIVM</b> [1] - 22:55</p>	<p><b>officer's</b> [1] - 5:20  <b>Officer's</b> [1] - 1:30  <b>OFFICERS'</b> [1] - 5:13  <b>Official</b> [1] - 10:25  <b>official</b> [1] - 5:39  <b>offset</b> [4] - 24:27, 24:28, 24:30, 24:56  <b>offsets</b> [2] - 9:2, 9:6  <b>often</b> [1] - 4:14  <b>old</b> [1] - 24:41  <b>once</b> [5] - 2:17, 17:32, 19:41, 25:44, 26:14  <b>one</b> [24] - 3:17, 4:29, 5:43, 6:15, 7:47, 8:10, 8:14, 8:28, 8:38, 10:38, 11:8, 11:40, 13:13, 16:38, 19:29, 19:37, 19:41, 21:56, 22:29, 24:24, 24:35, 28:38  <b>ones</b> [1] - 26:26  <b>online</b> [1] - 21:51  <b>open</b> [1] - 5:49  <b>openly</b> [1] - 24:20  <b>operates</b> [1] - 8:37  <b>Operating</b> [2] - 8:55, 9:2  <b>operation</b> [2] - 4:8, 8:42  <b>OPERATIONS</b> [1] - 1:2  <b>operations</b> [2] - 8:43, 8:44  <b>Operations</b> [2] - 1:12, 2:4  <b>opinion</b> [2] - 7:55, 8:51  <b>opportunity</b> [1] - 17:39  <b>Opposed</b> [4] - 27:45, 28:9, 28:30, 30:9  <b>opposed</b> [2] - 7:24, 30:38  <b>order</b> [2] - 2:1, 25:55  <b>organizational</b> [1] - 9:21  <b>organizations</b> [2] - 4:24, 29:6  <b>ourselves</b> [3] - 4:14, 5:16, 21:3  <b>outcome</b> [1] - 6:47  <b>outdated</b> [1] - 24:39  <b>outlets</b> [1] - 5:5  <b>outside</b> [1] - 4:25  <b>overlapping</b> [1] - 9:22  <b>overlooks</b> [1] - 8:43  <b>overwhelmed</b> [2] - 10:24, 10:26  <b>overwhelming</b> [1] - 16:3</p>	<p><b>owes</b> [1] - 24:44  <b>own</b> [8] - 8:31, 8:56, 9:9, 9:10, 13:22, 19:28, 22:42, 24:23</p>
	<b>N</b>		<b>O</b>	
<p><b>name</b> [5] - 19:29, 21:37, 24:3, 24:6, 25:35  <b>named</b> [1] - 4:12  <b>napkin</b> [1] - 15:27  <b>Nassau</b> [6] - 4:28, 5:51, 6:11, 7:48, 8:27, 25:40  <b>nation</b> [2] - 21:2  <b>national</b> [1] - 22:2  <b>Nazir</b> [1] - 1:35  <b>necessarily</b> [1] - 7:47  <b>need</b> [9] - 2:33, 2:37, 5:27, 5:51, 6:2, 6:56, 12:2, 17:40, 25:4  <b>needed</b> [1] - 8:11  <b>needs</b> [4] - 15:50, 24:52, 25:7, 28:18  <b>negative</b> [1] - 24:19  <b>neglect</b> [1] - 5:30  <b>nepotistic</b> [1] - 25:7  <b>never</b> [6] - 10:15, 13:38, 13:49, 16:3,</p>		<p><b>obviously</b> [2] - 10:10, 16:20  <b>occur</b> [1] - 4:16  <b>occurred</b> [2] - 7:44, 8:24  <b>ocean</b> [1] - 25:6  <b>October</b> [1] - 5:24  <b>OF</b> [1] - 1:6  <b>office</b> [4] - 8:27, 10:14, 22:41, 24:37  <b>Office</b> [15] - 1:29, 1:30, 1:37, 2:50, 3:45, 4:6, 4:18, 5:31, 5:38, 6:47, 6:50, 7:54, 22:26, 28:17, 28:38  <b>officer</b> [5] - 2:56, 3:10, 3:21, 5:14, 22:17  <b>Officer</b> [5] - 1:31, 4:40, 7:56, 10:1, 13:14</p>	<p style="text-align: center;"><b>P</b></p> <p><b>P.D</b> [1] - 29:21  <b>pact</b> [1] - 26:18  <b>parents</b> [2] - 20:46, 20:49  <b>Park</b> [1] - 16:48  <b>Parking</b> [1] - 26:46  <b>particular</b> [4] - 7:47, 11:43, 17:43, 23:18  <b>particularly</b> [2] - 7:55, 8:51  <b>parties</b> [2] - 1:48, 5:12  <b>party</b> [1] - 13:27  <b>passed</b> [4] - 22:25, 29:20, 29:43, 29:49  <b>passion</b> [1] - 16:6  <b>past</b> [4] - 5:47, 10:10, 10:31, 13:46  <b>Paul</b> [2] - 26:46, 26:50  <b>pay</b> [3] - 9:30, 9:37  <b>paying</b> [2] - 5:17, 13:29  <b>payout</b> [1] - 9:31  <b>Penny</b> [2] - 14:7, 14:37  <b>People</b> [2] - 11:8, 13:35  <b>people</b> [16] - 2:50, 2:51, 3:9, 3:10, 3:19, 6:23, 7:9, 13:31, 13:46, 17:2, 17:3, 19:44, 19:52, 22:21, 24:36, 26:2  <b>perfect</b> [1] - 20:54  <b>performance</b> [1] - 9:7  <b>period</b> [1] - 30:15  <b>person</b> [5] - 10:43, 13:13, 16:5, 16:24, 17:11  <b>personal</b> [1] - 26:52  <b>PERSONNEL</b> [1] - 1:2  <b>Personnel</b> [2] - 1:12, 2:5  <b>phone</b> [5] - 3:7, 3:17, 16:5, 16:23, 21:12  <b>phonetic</b> [2] - 12:50, 25:6  <b>picked</b> [1] - 21:53  <b>picture</b> [1] - 4:53  <b>PIENKOWSKI</b> [17] - 13:2, 15:11, 15:23, 15:29, 15:44, 16:15, 16:44, 16:51, 17:8, 17:20, 17:26, 17:35,</p>	

# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<p>17:49, 18:4, 18:15, 18:32, 18:42  <b>Pienkowski</b> [4] - 1:42, 12:50, 15:9, 16:8  <b>piling</b> [1] - 10:27  <b>pipe</b> [1] - 21:51  <b>PIRKLE</b> [2] - 25:28, 25:34  <b>Pirkle</b> [2] - 1:47, 25:35  <b>pistol</b> [3] - 2:44, 2:45, 3:24  <b>pistol-whipping</b> [2] - 2:44, 3:24  <b>place</b> [2] - 6:15, 6:16  <b>plagued</b> [1] - 2:43  <b>planning</b> [1] - 25:36  <b>planting</b> [1] - 19:40  <b>pleasure</b> [3] - 2:31, 7:29, 7:36  <b>Pledge</b> [1] - 2:6  <b>podium</b> [3] - 23:26, 23:35, 23:38  <b>point</b> [6] - 3:17, 5:43, 6:50, 7:2, 28:37, 30:31  <b>points</b> [1] - 8:15  <b>poisonous</b> [1] - 21:47  <b>POLICE</b> [1] - 5:13  <b>Police</b> [10] - 4:22, 4:53, 5:10, 8:13, 9:9, 19:36, 19:37, 26:27, 29:44, 30:13  <b>police</b> [7] - 2:55, 3:9, 3:21, 5:14, 5:19, 5:25, 21:46  <b>policy</b> [5] - 4:27, 6:24, 8:17, 8:39, 28:34  <b>policy-making</b> [1] - 8:39  <b>Polish</b> [1] - 15:17  <b>politics</b> [1] - 10:40  <b>poor</b> [2] - 14:7, 21:43  <b>Poor</b> [1] - 14:37  <b>portion</b> [2] - 2:20, 7:25  <b>Portion</b> [1] - 26:41  <b>position</b> [1] - 5:36  <b>possession</b> [1] - 25:46  <b>possible</b> [1] - 17:11  <b>possibly</b> [3] - 4:31, 6:42, 21:52  <b>Postal</b> [1] - 1:14  <b>power</b> [7] - 3:9, 4:21, 5:40, 7:8, 7:11, 10:3, 17:45  <b>powers</b> [1] - 3:10  <b>Precinct</b> [1] - 26:1  <b>preclude</b> [3] - 8:28, 8:31, 8:35  <b>predated</b> [1] - 21:50</p>	<p><b>predecessors</b> [1] - 5:37  <b>prepare</b> [1] - 8:54  <b>prepared</b> [2] - 15:56, 25:36  <b>presence</b> [1] - 26:45  <b>PRESENT</b> [1] - 1:18  <b>present</b> [1] - 27:11  <b>Presiding</b> [5] - 1:31, 4:40, 7:56, 10:1, 13:14  <b>pretty</b> [4] - 8:53, 8:56, 9:3, 26:49  <b>prevent</b> [4] - 4:55, 6:42, 7:52, 17:5  <b>preventative</b> [1] - 8:18  <b>prevented</b> [1] - 18:21  <b>preventive</b> [1] - 6:48  <b>previously</b> [1] - 29:20  <b>private</b> [1] - 24:35  <b>problem</b> [2] - 20:55, 26:2  <b>problems</b> [1] - 26:52  <b>procedure</b> [2] - 12:17, 12:23  <b>procedures</b> [1] - 5:29  <b>professional</b> [1] - 7:46  <b>progress</b> [1] - 4:33  <b>proof</b> [4] - 11:36, 13:12, 13:20, 13:33  <b>prosecutor</b> [1] - 10:14  <b>prostitutes</b> [1] - 5:25  <b>protect</b> [7] - 3:23, 4:4, 4:21, 16:34, 17:52, 19:44, 19:45  <b>protected</b> [2] - 3:19, 17:46  <b>protecting</b> [2] - 4:39, 6:23  <b>protection</b> [1] - 2:13  <b>protections</b> [1] - 22:15  <b>protective</b> [1] - 15:47  <b>protector</b> [1] - 9:33  <b>protects</b> [1] - 4:5  <b>prove</b> [1] - 24:39  <b>proves</b> [1] - 25:46  <b>provide</b> [1] - 8:40  <b>Prudenti</b> [1] - 13:26  <b>psychiatrist</b> [1] - 26:13  <b>Public</b> [4] - 26:41, 27:47, 28:10, 28:32  <b>public</b> [12] - 2:20, 5:15, 7:25, 7:38, 25:16, 27:33, 27:42, 27:46, 27:51, 28:10, 28:18, 28:31  <b>puppet</b> [1] - 3:12  <b>put</b> [4] - 2:44, 15:50,</p>	<p>22:3, 26:47  <b>puts</b> [1] - 6:56</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Q</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>Queens</b> [3] - 15:14, 22:8, 25:41  <b>questions</b> [13] - 7:21, 7:25, 9:24, 9:27, 9:41, 11:9, 11:44, 12:38, 12:42, 13:14, 21:22, 25:10, 27:27  <b>quickly</b> [1] - 25:38  <b>quite</b> [1] - 4:39  <b>quiz</b> [1] - 9:23  <b>quoting</b> [1] - 19:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>R</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>Raised</b> [5] - 23:22, 27:36, 27:54, 28:21, 30:6  <b>raised</b> [2] - 23:25, 25:40  <b>ran</b> [3] - 19:28, 22:33, 22:55  <b>Raniere</b> [1] - 22:56  <b>rather</b> [2] - 8:46, 16:32  <b>read</b> [1] - 5:11  <b>reading</b> [1] - 15:54  <b>real</b> [1] - 13:28  <b>realizing</b> [1] - 4:5  <b>really</b> [13] - 2:48, 3:19, 5:5, 8:45, 13:28, 13:45, 13:47, 13:48, 23:32, 28:37, 29:46, 29:47  <b>reason</b> [3] - 23:41, 24:25, 30:25  <b>reasons</b> [1] - 24:49  <b>Rebolini</b> [1] - 13:24  <b>received</b> [1] - 16:21  <b>recently</b> [2] - 22:40, 26:25  <b>recognize</b> [1] - 15:53  <b>recommendations</b> [3] - 5:46, 5:48, 8:40  <b>Reconnaissance</b> [1] - 21:38  <b>record</b> [3] - 24:12, 25:13, 26:47  <b>records</b> [2] - 14:19, 24:39  <b>recruit</b> [1] - 21:45  <b>reeling</b> [2] - 4:13, 10:30  <b>reference</b> [1] - 5:47  <b>referenced</b> [1] - 8:27  <b>refused</b> [3] - 3:2, 3:3, 26:10</p>	<p><b>regret</b> [1] - 8:10  <b>Reilly</b> [1] - 13:25  <b>relationship</b> [1] - 6:53  <b>released</b> [1] - 24:55  <b>rely</b> [1] - 4:15  <b>relying</b> [1] - 6:40  <b>remain</b> [1] - 2:11  <b>remarkable</b> [1] - 4:32  <b>remember</b> [1] - 16:48  <b>remind</b> [1] - 16:18  <b>rental</b> [1] - 26:18  <b>replaced</b> [1] - 10:44  <b>replacement</b> [1] - 8:47  <b>report</b> [6] - 3:3, 5:35, 5:45, 5:47, 26:1  <b>reports</b> [3] - 3:48, 5:43, 8:36  <b>represent</b> [3] - 3:23, 22:16, 22:17  <b>representing</b> [1] - 22:17  <b>Republican</b> [1] - 10:50  <b>requesting</b> [1] - 26:45  <b>resolution</b> [6] - 3:44, 19:50, 28:51, 29:19, 29:43  <b>RESOLUTIONS</b> [2] - 27:29, 28:12  <b>Resolutions</b> [2] - 27:31, 28:14  <b>resolve</b> [1] - 16:16  <b>respect</b> [9] - 7:37, 12:37, 12:40, 13:16, 13:17, 13:29, 16:56, 26:34  <b>respond</b> [1] - 22:41  <b>responsibilities</b> [1] - 9:22  <b>responsible</b> [2] - 8:54, 8:55  <b>resulted</b> [1] - 5:18  <b>retribution</b> [1] - 19:42  <b>Review</b> [1] - 1:29  <b>revise</b> [1] - 22:5  <b>revolutionize</b> [1] - 24:31  <b>rights</b> [1] - 22:19  <b>ring</b> [2] - 2:43, 3:25  <b>rings</b> [3] - 20:26, 20:35, 20:38  <b>rise</b> [1] - 2:6  <b>Riverhead</b> [2] - 1:16, 26:6  <b>rob</b> [1] - 24:44  <b>Rob</b> [4] - 19:35, 24:18, 24:44, 24:52  <b>robbery</b> [1] - 21:46  <b>Robert</b> [1] - 1:26  <b>role</b> [1] - 9:14</p>	<p><b>room</b> [1] - 14:19  <b>roommate</b> [1] - 21:46  <b>rough</b> [1] - 24:54  <b>ruining</b> [2] - 20:56, 21:1  <b>run</b> [3] - 9:30, 19:31, 23:3</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>S</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>sacrifice</b> [1] - 19:45  <b>sad</b> [3] - 26:33, 26:35  <b>safe</b> [1] - 13:50  <b>safeguarded</b> [1] - 3:2  <b>safety</b> [2] - 7:38, 15:45  <b>sales</b> [1] - 25:45  <b>Salutation</b> [1] - 2:9  <b>Samantha</b> [1] - 1:34  <b>Samuel</b> [1] - 1:19  <b>Sarah</b> [1] - 1:27  <b>Sarube</b> [1] - 1:34  <b>satisfied</b> [1] - 8:20  <b>save</b> [1] - 15:6  <b>saved</b> [1] - 5:16  <b>saw</b> [4] - 4:14, 18:6, 18:7, 22:25  <b>Sayville</b> [1] - 25:52  <b>scandal</b> [2] - 4:23, 10:2  <b>scared</b> [3] - 19:42, 19:43, 19:44  <b>scenes</b> [1] - 19:40  <b>scheduling</b> [1] - 26:52  <b>school</b> [4] - 4:30, 10:25, 15:53  <b>Schumer</b> [1] - 23:1  <b>Scott</b> [1] - 13:26  <b>Screening</b> [1] - 27:50  <b>seated</b> [1] - 2:17  <b>second</b> [13] - 16:38, 25:45, 25:53, 27:39, 27:45, 28:2, 28:5, 28:24, 28:27, 28:38, 30:3, 30:34, 30:37  <b>secondary</b> [1] - 15:15  <b>seconds</b> [3] - 22:49, 25:4, 28:8  <b>security</b> [2] - 22:2, 23:2  <b>see</b> [12] - 6:33, 6:36, 7:15, 13:12, 13:20, 18:5, 23:3, 23:25, 23:29, 23:32, 23:38, 23:49  <b>seeing</b> [1] - 26:41  <b>sees</b> [1] - 16:24  <b>selling</b> [3] - 13:39, 21:50, 21:51  <b>sense</b> [1] - 21:2  <b>sent</b> [1] - 5:31</p>
--	--	--	--	---

# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<p><b>sentenced</b> [2] - 8:12  <b>separate</b> [4] - 4:7, 4:8, 4:27, 5:7  <b>serious</b> [1] - 9:15  <b>seriously</b> [3] - 3:16, 3:21  <b>servants</b> [1] - 5:15  <b>serve</b> [2] - 7:56, 19:45  <b>served</b> [2] - 22:40, 25:49  <b>service</b> [2] - 21:42, 28:35  <b>services</b> [1] - 16:49  <b>Services</b> [1] - 22:33  <b>set</b> [7] - 4:8, 4:27, 6:19, 7:46, 8:19, 8:40, 9:7  <b>setting</b> [1] - 4:6  <b>sex</b> [2] - 5:25, 19:38  <b>Sex</b> [1] - 22:55  <b>sexually</b> [1] - 26:20  <b>shame</b> [1] - 18:20  <b>shameful</b> [1] - 18:21  <b>shape</b> [1] - 8:52  <b>Sharkey</b> [1] - 28:51  <b>SHARKEY</b> [4] - 29:1, 29:9, 29:18, 29:32  <b>Sheriff</b> [1] - 28:51  <b>Sheriffs</b> [3] - 13:51, 14:50, 30:13  <b>shit</b> [1] - 19:12  <b>short</b> [1] - 3:1  <b>shortcomings</b> [1] - 9:36  <b>show</b> [1] - 9:35  <b>side</b> [3] - 7:49  <b>sides</b> [1] - 25:2  <b>sign</b> [2] - 10:36, 22:1  <b>signed</b> [1] - 23:16  <b>significant</b> [1] - 9:1  <b>silence</b> [1] - 2:11  <b>Silence</b> [1] - 2:15  <b>Simeone</b> [1] - 24:51  <b>simple</b> [6] - 6:2, 6:5, 11:40, 11:53, 13:45  <b>Simpson</b> [1] - 1:27  <b>SIMPSON</b> [18] - 2:36, 6:7, 11:11, 11:20, 20:4, 20:28, 23:24, 23:34, 25:22, 27:1, 27:7, 27:13, 27:19, 28:44, 29:26, 29:55, 30:18, 30:30  <b>single</b> [1] - 17:11  <b>Sini</b> [3] - 3:11, 13:38  <b>sit</b> [1] - 12:2  <b>sitting</b> [1] - 13:42  <b>situation</b> [5] - 4:22, 13:49, 18:1, 25:37,</p>	<p>25:38  <b>six</b> [4] - 4:47, 17:21, 17:27, 25:42  <b>size</b> [1] - 8:56  <b>sleepless</b> [1] - 16:4  <b>sliced</b> [1] - 26:14  <b>slush</b> [1] - 22:30  <b>small</b> [1] - 22:36  <b>smart</b> [1] - 22:15  <b>snacks</b> [1] - 15:56  <b>sober</b> [1] - 25:41  <b>solitary</b> [2] - 26:3, 26:16  <b>someone</b> [8] - 5:5, 5:6, 15:27, 21:45, 22:5, 22:20, 22:27  <b>sometimes</b> [3] - 4:3, 4:5, 19:45  <b>sons</b> [1] - 25:55  <b>soon</b> [1] - 27:26  <b>sooner</b> [1] - 8:16  <b>sorry</b> [7] - 9:8, 9:23, 11:15, 11:27, 11:33, 22:52, 23:29  <b>Sounded</b> [2] - 13:55, 22:38  <b>Southern</b> [2] - 8:30, 10:26  <b>speaker</b> [1] - 12:49  <b>speakers</b> [1] - 12:38  <b>speaking</b> [6] - 3:34, 7:26, 9:56, 13:14, 17:39, 18:36  <b>special</b> [3] - 10:14, 15:13, 16:26  <b>specific</b> [1] - 8:37  <b>specifically</b> [1] - 6:41  <b>spectrum</b> [1] - 25:2  <b>spend</b> [2] - 14:50, 14:56  <b>spent</b> [1] - 26:3  <b>Spinner</b> [2] - 13:23, 13:39  <b>spoken</b> [5] - 2:41, 3:5, 17:44, 23:17, 26:50  <b>Spota</b> [3] - 2:48, 2:51, 19:43  <b>Spota's</b> [1] - 19:11  <b>Staff/Presiding</b> [1] - 1:30  <b>stand</b> [2] - 9:2, 19:47  <b>standing</b> [3] - 2:11, 8:55, 16:30  <b>start</b> [5] - 2:19, 13:22, 14:1, 22:34  <b>started</b> [2] - 15:53, 22:42  <b>State</b> [12] - 3:53, 4:15, 6:50, 7:49, 8:29, 8:44, 9:8, 9:10,</p>	<p>22:30, 22:43, 26:8  <b>state</b> [4] - 22:30, 23:53, 24:3, 26:26  <b>State-level</b> [1] - 8:44  <b>states</b> [1] - 22:31  <b>stealing</b> [1] - 19:40  <b>Stein</b> [1] - 1:31  <b>Stenographer</b> [1] - 1:51  <b>step</b> [4] - 4:32, 24:20, 25:5  <b>Steve</b> [1] - 13:27  <b>stigmatic</b> [1] - 25:6  <b>still</b> [9] - 2:53, 3:6, 4:13, 10:30, 13:38, 13:40, 15:55, 26:7, 26:28  <b>stitches</b> [1] - 26:11  <b>stole</b> [1] - 14:1  <b>stolen</b> [1] - 20:50  <b>Stony</b> [1] - 26:18  <b>stood</b> [1] - 8:27  <b>stop</b> [2] - 13:35, 18:8  <b>story</b> [2] - 7:6, 21:50  <b>street</b> [1] - 26:3  <b>strengthen</b> [1] - 21:2  <b>Stroehlein</b> [1] - 1:29  <b>structure</b> [1] - 9:21  <b>structured</b> [2] - 10:16, 10:34  <b>studied</b> [2] - 15:15, 22:9  <b>stuff</b> [1] - 18:8  <b>subpoena</b> [4] - 4:20, 7:8, 7:11, 10:3  <b>subpoenaed</b> [1] - 7:10  <b>successors</b> [1] - 5:37  <b>suffered</b> [2] - 17:28, 18:18  <b>suffering</b> [1] - 20:49  <b>SUFFOLK</b> [1] - 1:8  <b>Suffolk</b> [23] - 1:13, 1:38, 1:39, 3:46, 3:56, 4:7, 4:31, 4:33, 6:11, 7:37, 7:49, 8:37, 8:43, 10:29, 10:32, 25:38, 25:40, 27:32, 27:50, 28:17, 29:20, 30:13  <b>suggest</b> [1] - 9:1  <b>suggested</b> [1] - 8:10  <b>supervisory</b> [1] - 7:6  <b>supplement</b> [1] - 8:46  <b>supplementing</b> [1] - 8:35  <b>support</b> [3] - 6:55, 24:20, 24:21  <b>supporting</b> [1] - 6:56  <b>supposed</b> [4] - 3:20, 3:22, 3:23, 19:45</p>	<p><b>Supreme</b> [1] - 22:13  <b>surgeries</b> [1] - 26:29  <b>surprise</b> [1] - 19:50  <b>surveillance</b> [1] - 5:12  <b>Susan</b> [1] - 1:21  <b>suspect</b> [1] - 7:3  <b>Sutherland</b> [1] - 1:39  <b>system</b> [10] - 7:50, 15:45, 17:18, 22:8, 22:9, 24:31, 24:40, 26:9, 26:32, 26:35  <b>systematic</b> [1] - 20:54</p>	<p><b>Timer</b> [1] - 13:55  <b>tired</b> [1] - 16:4  <b>tiring</b> [1] - 16:2  <b>tissue</b> [2] - 15:36, 15:39  <b>Tissues</b> [1] - 16:8  <b>Title</b> [1] - 22:31  <b>today</b> [5] - 2:18, 3:6, 4:31, 15:12, 16:30  <b>together</b> [3] - 15:17, 16:30, 17:43  <b>Tom</b> [6] - 1:20, 2:48, 2:51, 19:11, 24:27, 24:29  <b>Tommy</b> [1] - 18:18  <b>took</b> [5] - 13:51, 16:55, 24:40, 25:54, 26:26  <b>TOOKER</b> [36] - 11:23, 11:29, 11:35, 11:46, 12:7, 12:22, 12:28, 12:52, 13:5, 13:11, 14:6, 14:12, 14:18, 14:24, 14:30, 14:36, 14:42, 14:48, 14:55, 15:5, 15:35, 15:41, 18:12, 18:26, 18:39, 18:48, 19:17, 19:23, 20:13, 20:19, 20:25, 21:5, 21:18, 21:24, 22:48, 25:12  <b>Tooker</b> [2] - 1:43, 12:49  <b>top</b> [1] - 5:11  <b>torn</b> [1] - 20:50  <b>touch</b> [1] - 26:2  <b>tow</b> [1] - 26:49  <b>Town</b> [2] - 2:42, 3:25  <b>Traffic</b> [1] - 26:46  <b>trafficking</b> [1] - 19:38  <b>tragedy</b> [4] - 7:44, 7:45, 7:47, 18:21  <b>tragic</b> [3] - 4:12, 6:47, 13:48  <b>treat</b> [1] - 12:40  <b>tree</b> [1] - 21:47  <b>trial</b> [2] - 19:11, 26:7  <b>Trotta</b> [12] - 1:26, 3:5, 4:36, 9:53, 11:54, 12:23, 13:19, 19:1, 19:11, 19:35, 21:12, 28:17  <b>trotta</b> [1] - 13:18  <b>trouble</b> [1] - 11:8  <b>true</b> [1] - 10:35  <b>trust</b> [1] - 23:2  <b>truth</b> [1] - 21:25  <b>try</b> [5] - 8:54, 9:2, 12:36, 12:37, 17:5  <b>trying</b> [3] - 9:23,</p>
<b>T</b>				
<p><b>table</b> [3] - 27:51, 30:16, 30:22  <b>tabled</b> [6] - 25:13, 27:33, 27:46, 28:9, 28:18, 28:31  <b>TABLED</b> [1] - 27:29  <b>Tabled</b> [5] - 27:31, 27:47, 28:10, 28:31, 30:38  <b>TAKEN</b> [1] - 1:50  <b>teach</b> [1] - 3:20  <b>Tech</b> [1] - 2:5  <b>TECHNOLOGY</b> [1] - 1:4  <b>Technology</b> [1] - 1:13  <b>telephonic</b> [1] - 21:48  <b>term</b> [1] - 10:43  <b>terms</b> [5] - 6:22, 9:15, 30:14  <b>terror</b> [1] - 22:3  <b>testify</b> [2] - 23:19, 25:16  <b>THE</b> [1] - 1:6  <b>themselves</b> [6] - 2:49, 4:4, 4:25, 4:39, 10:3, 10:4  <b>thereafter</b> [1] - 10:37  <b>they've</b> [1] - 17:13  <b>thimble</b> [1] - 25:6  <b>thirds</b> [4] - 5:52, 18:56, 19:1  <b>Thomas</b> [3] - 4:11, 6:43, 7:4  <b>thoughts</b> [2] - 7:56, 8:50  <b>threatening</b> [1] - 26:23  <b>threats</b> [1] - 26:21  <b>three</b> [7] - 13:16, 15:18, 19:53, 20:17, 20:23, 25:54, 26:16  <b>throughout</b> [1] - 16:21  <b>Thursday</b> [1] - 18:6  <b>Tim</b> [3] - 3:11, 13:38  <b>time's</b> [1] - 22:52</p>				

# INDEX

[Occurrence of Word] - Page Number:Line Number

<p>10:32, 21:45  <b>Tuesday</b> [3] - 18:6,            18:7, 24:21  <b>twenty</b> [1] - 26:11  <b>two</b> [14] - 2:20, 3:6,            5:52, 16:1, 18:56,            19:1, 21:39, 26:8,            26:16, 26:26, 26:29,            27:14  <b>two-thirds</b> [4] - 5:52,            18:56, 19:1  <b>type</b> [2] - 7:10, 26:9</p>	<p><b>Valva</b> [4] - 4:11, 6:43,            7:4, 15:13  <b>vast</b> [1] - 5:14  <b>vehicles</b> [1] - 5:13  <b>vehicles'</b> [1] - 26:49  <b>venue</b> [2] - 22:3, 22:13  <b>venues</b> [1] - 22:31  <b>veteran</b> [3] - 21:37,            22:49  <b>Vice</b> [1] - 1:20  <b>victim</b> [1] - 22:7  <b>victimized</b> [1] - 21:45  <b>victims</b> [2] - 13:31,            13:46  <b>Vicuna</b> [2] - 2:44, 3:23  <b>videos</b> [1] - 3:11  <b>vigilant</b> [1] - 6:17  <b>Village</b> [1] - 3:52  <b>Vincent</b> [3] - 13:25,            13:26, 19:14  <b>violated</b> [1] - 26:7  <b>Violations</b> [2] - 26:46  <b>violence</b> [1] - 26:34  <b>voice</b> [3] - 2:34, 17:17  <b>Vote</b> [5] - 27:47,            28:10, 28:31, 30:10,            30:38  <b>voting</b> [1] - 18:56</p>	<p><b>wife</b> [4] - 25:42, 25:53,            26:17, 26:25  <b>wife's</b> [1] - 26:29  <b>willig</b> [1] - 17:5  <b>wisdom</b> [1] - 3:48  <b>wise</b> [1] - 4:6  <b>wisely</b> [1] - 10:35  <b>witness</b> [1] - 19:39  <b>woman</b> [3] - 15:13,            15:14, 15:47  <b>women</b> [1] - 26:2  <b>word</b> [1] - 19:52  <b>words</b> [4] - 7:44,            16:17, 17:50, 17:51  <b>worker</b> [1] - 5:34  <b>works</b> [4] - 3:49, 8:53,            10:38, 24:31  <b>world</b> [2] - 13:15,            26:36  <b>worried</b> [1] - 18:9  <b>worth</b> [1] - 10:32  <b>wrist</b> [1] - 26:14  <b>wrongdoing</b> [2] -            4:20, 6:23  <b>wrote</b> [2] - 19:50,            26:20</p>
<b>U</b>		<b>Y</b>
<p><b>unacceptable</b> [1] -            17:29  <b>unanimously</b> [1] -            6:12  <b>unconditionally</b> [1] -            16:35  <b>under</b> [2] - 3:48, 4:19  <b>understood</b> [1] -            22:10  <b>undying</b> [1] - 16:56  <b>unfolded</b> [2] - 9:32,            9:38  <b>unfortunate</b> [2] - 5:18,            26:35  <b>unfortunately</b> [1] -            26:50  <b>unique</b> [1] - 4:18  <b>Unit</b> [1] - 21:38  <b>unless</b> [3] - 4:25, 7:10,            10:44  <b>unwilling</b> [1] - 10:10  <b>unwitting</b> [1] - 4:3  <b>up</b> [42] - 2:28, 2:45,            3:40, 4:6, 4:13, 5:40,            5:46, 6:23, 8:13,            8:28, 8:55, 9:2, 9:7,            9:56, 10:19, 10:27,            12:38, 13:13, 13:34,            13:38, 13:40, 13:45,            14:22, 14:25, 14:31,            14:46, 14:53, 16:55,            18:52, 19:28, 19:37,            19:47, 21:28, 21:50,            21:53, 22:11, 22:15,            22:52, 24:21, 26:20,            28:37, 28:38  <b>upset</b> [1] - 25:50  <b>Upstate</b> [1] - 23:1  <b>urge</b> [1] - 5:51</p>	<b>W</b>	<p><b>year</b> [10] - 8:40, 9:6,            10:31, 10:43, 22:27,            24:41, 25:13, 26:25,            26:53  <b>years</b> [14] - 4:47,            15:14, 15:16, 15:49,            16:1, 16:21, 16:31,            19:36, 24:44, 25:1,            26:8, 26:16  <b>Years</b> [1] - 24:38  <b>Yonkers</b> [1] - 4:29  <b>York</b> [11] - 1:16, 6:50,            7:49, 8:29, 9:8,            10:26, 22:29, 22:30,            22:43  <b>younger</b> [1] - 26:26  <b>yourself</b> [3] - 19:8,            19:9, 22:16  <b>yourselves</b> [1] - 12:37  <b>yummy</b> [1] - 15:56</p>
<b>V</b>		<b>Z</b>
<p><b>vacation</b> [2] - 26:52,            27:26  <b>Valerie</b> [1] - 13:43</p>	<p><b>wages</b> [1] - 22:34  <b>Wait</b> [1] - 24:41  <b>wait</b> [2] - 7:24, 24:41  <b>waiting</b> [1] - 3:6  <b>waiver</b> [1] - 28:34  <b>walk</b> [2] - 15:6, 24:49  <b>war</b> [1] - 22:34  <b>ward</b> [1] - 22:16  <b>warrant</b> [3] - 21:48,            21:49  <b>watch</b> [1] - 16:19  <b>Waverly</b> [1] - 26:1  <b>Webber</b> [1] - 13:25  <b>website</b> [2] - 22:43,            23:1  <b>websites</b> [1] - 23:2  <b>weeks</b> [2] - 25:54,            27:14  <b>welcome</b> [1] - 2:4  <b>wellbeing</b> [2] - 15:46,            15:52  <b>whipping</b> [3] - 2:44,            2:45, 3:24  <b>whistle</b> [3] - 4:21, 9:34  <b>whistle-blowers</b> [3] -            4:21, 9:34  <b>whole</b> [5] - 7:5, 24:19,            25:37, 26:9, 26:32</p>	<p><b>zero</b> [1] - 22:22  <b>Zubko</b> [1] - 15:13  <b>Zubko-Valva</b> [1] -            15:13</p>